
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Environment 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Date: Friday, 18th June, 2004 

Time: 10.00 a.m. 

Place: Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of 
the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Paul James, Members' Services, 
Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford 
Tel:01432 260 460 Fax:01432 260286 

e-mail pjames@herefordshire.gov.uk 

  
 
County of Herefordshire 
District Council 





COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 18TH JUNE, 2004 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
for the Meeting of the Environment Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
To: Councillor J.H.R. Goodwin (Chairman) 

Councillor  W.L.S. Bowen (Vice-Chairman) 
 
 Councillors P.J. Dauncey, G.W. Davis, Mrs. A.E. Gray, K.G. Grumbley, 

T.W. Hunt, R. Mills, J.W. Newman and Miss F. Short 
 

  
  
 Pages 
  

1. CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN     

 To note the reappointment at Council of Councillor J. Goodwin as 
Chairman and Councillor W.L. S. Bowen as Vice-Chairman. 

 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     

 To receive apologies for absence.  

3. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)     

 To receive details any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting 
in place of a Member of the Committee. 

 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     

 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 
the Agenda. 

 

5. MINUTES   1 - 6  

 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 2nd April, 2004.  

6. GEM PERFORMANCE 2003/2004   7 - 24  

 To review the Council’s environmental management / ISO 14001 system to 
ensure that it continues to be suitable, adequate and effective and deliver 
improvement in environmental performance. 

 

7. WASTE MANAGEMENT   25 - 34  

 To provide an update on the current performance of the Waste Collection 
Contract, Integrated Waste Management Contract and to outline the 
implication of the Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire. 

 

8. CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2004/05   35 - 38  

 To inform the Committee of the latest position with regard to the 
Environment Capital Programme for 2004/05. 

 

9. ENVIRONMENT REVENUE BUDGET 2004/05 AND OUTTURN 2003/4   39 - 40  

 To inform members of the latest position with regard to the Environment 
Budget for 2004/05 following the formal approval of the Council’s budget. 

 



 

10. BEST VALUE REVIEWS IMPLEMENTATION OF IMPROVEMENT 
PLANS   

41 - 46  

 To report the remaining actions and the exceptions to the programmed 
progress in the improvement plans resulting from the reviews of 
Development Control, Public Conveniences Public Rights of Way and 
Highway Maintenance. 

 

11. MONITORING OF 2003/04 PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FULL YEAR 
APRIL 2003 TO MARCH 2004   

47 - 54  

 To update Members on progress made by the Environment Directorate for 
the  full year April 2003 to March 2004 towards achieving all of the 
performance indicators / targets which appear in the Council’s Performance 
Plan. 

 

12. HEREFORDSHIRE PLAN AMBITIONS - CONTRIBUTION MADE BY THE 
ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE   

55 - 60  

 To advise upon the Directorate’s contribution to the ambitions contained 
within the Herefordshire Plan, in particular those relating to “protecting and 
improving Herefordshire’s distinctive environment” and “developing an 
integrated transport system for Herefordshire”. 

 



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\6\1\AI00003169\Agendainfosheets0.doc  10/06/04 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

The Council has established Scrutiny Committees for Education, 
Environment, Health, Social Care and Housing and Social and 
Economic Development.  A Strategic Monitoring Committee 
scrutinises Policy and Finance matters and co-ordinates the work 
of these Committees. 

The purpose of the Committees is to ensure the accountability and 
transparency of the Council's decision making process. 

The principal roles of Scrutiny Committees are to 
 
•  Help in developing Council policy 
 
• Probe, investigate, test the options and ask the difficult 

questions before and after decisions are taken 
 
• Look in more detail at areas of concern which may have been 

raised by the Cabinet itself, by other Councillors or by members 
of the public 

 
• "call in" decisions  - this is a statutory power which gives 

Scrutiny Committees the right to place a decision on hold 
pending further scrutiny. 

 
• Review performance of the Council 
 
• Conduct Best Value reviews  
 
• Undertake external scrutiny work engaging partners and the 

public  
 
Formal meetings of the Committees are held in public and 
information on your rights to attend meetings and access to 
information are set out overleaf 
 
 
 
 
 



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\6\1\AI00003169\Agendainfosheets0.doc  10/06/04 

The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings 
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO:- 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings 

unless the business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or 
‘exempt' information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of 
the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees 
and written statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual 
Cabinet Members for up to six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a 
period of up to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the 
background papers to a report is given at the end of each report).  A 
background paper is a document on which the officer has relied in writing 
the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of the Cabinet, of all 
Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to 
items to be considered in public) made available to the public attending 
meetings of the Council, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have 
delegated decision making to their officers identifying the officers 
concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of 
access, subject to a reasonable charge (10p per sheet). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend 
meetings of the Council, Cabinet, its Committees and Sub-Committees and 
to inspect and copy documents. 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made 
available in large print.  Please contact the officer 
named below in advance of the meeting who will be 
pleased to deal with your request. 



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\6\1\AI00003169\Agendainfosheets0.doc  10/06/04 

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for visitors 
in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available.  

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 

 

Public Transport links 

Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via bus route 104 
shown in dark grey on the enclosed map. The service runs every half hour 
from the hopper bus station at Tesco's in Bewell St (next to the roundabout at 
the junction of Blueschool Street/Victoria St/Edgar St) and the nearest bus 
stop to Brockington is in Old Eign Hill near to its junction with Hafod Road. 
The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 
 

If you have any questions about this Agenda, how the Council works or would 
like more information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information 
described above, you may do so either by telephoning Mr Paul James on 
01432 260460 or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 
p.m. Monday - Thursday and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council 
Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford. 



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\6\1\AI00003169\Agendainfosheets0.doc  10/06/04 

COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 
 

 
In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the nearest 
available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located at the southern 
entrance to the car park.  A check will be undertaken to ensure that those 
recorded as present have vacated the building following which further 
instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to collect 
coats or other personal belongings. 

 



COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Environment Scrutiny 
Committee held at Council Chamber, Brockington, Hafod 
Road, Hereford. on Friday, 2nd April, 2004 at 10.00 a.m. 

Present: Councillor J.H.R. Goodwin (Chairman) 
Councillor  W.L.S. Bowen (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillors: P.J. Dauncey, G.W. Davis,D.J. Fleet, K.G. Grumbley, J. G. 
S. Guthrie, T.W. Hunt,  Miss F. Short. 

In attendance: Councillors B.F. Ashton, J.W. Edwards, P.J. Edwards, (Cabinet 
Member - Environment), P.E. Harling, T.M. James, R.I. Matthews  
R.M. Wilson (Cabinet Member – Highways and Transportation)

57. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 Apologies were received from Councillors Mrs A. Gray, R. Mills and J. W. Newman.

58. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)  

 Councillor J. G. S. Guthrie substituted for Councillor R. Mills, Councillor D. J. Fleet 
substituted for Councillor J.W. Newman.

59. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 There were no declarations of interest.

60. MINUTES  

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 23rd January, 2004 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

61. CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING  

 Members were advised of the progress of the 2003/4 Capital Programme for 
Environment Areas within the overall context of the Herefordshire Council Capital 
Programme.

The Director of Environment and the Assistant County Treasurer reported that the 
Environment Capital Programme, shown at Appendix 1 to the report, totalled 
£10,489,933 which was £333,008 less than reported to the previous meeting.  The 
difference was accounted for by transfers which were further detailed in the report.  
The Director was confident of a good budget out turn and reported that the total 
amount spent and committed as at 29th February was 97% of the budget or 
£10.080m.

In the course of scrutinising the Capital Programme the Committee noted that while 
the Roman Road scheme had commenced and works were progressing, a number 
of delays had occurred and that only £430,000 of the budgeted £800,000 was shown 
as spent in 2003/4.  The balance of £370,000 would have to be funded from 
resources available in future years.  The Committee discussed the various reasons 
for the delays e.g. environmental assessment and land acquisitions and questioned 

AGENDA ITEM 5

1



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 2ND APRIL, 2004 

whether, as a matter of course, allowances for potential delays were built into works 
programmes.  It was suggested that a key path diagram be provided for Members on 
major developments. 

In reply to a comment that a number of budget headings showed little or no spend, 
the Director of Environment reported that a number of similar budget allocations, but 
funded from different sources, had been amalgamated and spent.  One scheme, 
which relied on another party, had been delayed.

RESOLVED:  That the Environment Capital Budget monitoring report be noted. 

62. ENVIRONMENT REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING  

 The Committee were advised of the Budget monitoring position for the Environment 
Programme Area budget for the period to 29th February, 2004 and were informed of 
variations against budget at this stage in the year. 

The Director of Environment reported that the projected outturn for the year was 
£21,994,000 which was a net underspend of £154,000.  The budget monitoring 
report was attached at Appendix 1. 

The Assistant County Treasurer reported that the overall budget for 2003/04 was 
£22,148,000, as notified to the Committee in January, 2004.  The budget included 
£1,047,200 for Central Support charges.  Based on current projections he 
anticipated a modest roll forward of funding into 2004/05 and the current budget 
variations were described in the report. 

RESOLVED: That the Environment Revenue Budget Monitoring for 2003/4 
report be noted.

63. BEST VALUE REVIEWS - IMPLEMENTATION OF IMPROVEMENT PLANS  

 The Committee received a report on the remaining actions and the exceptions to the 
programmed progress in the improvement plans resulting from the reviews of 
Development Control, Public Conveniences, Public Rights of Way and Highway 
Maintenance.

Programmed actions in the various improvement plans were detailed in Appendix 1 
to the report. 

During the course of discussion the following principal comments were made: 

• Development Control – The Director of Environment reported that progress 
was being made in relation to the IT Strategy.  However, consideration was 
being given to the volume of historical data that should be captured.  
Concerning the MVM System he was conscious that this should be a robust 
system.  It was also reported that the Government were unable to specify 
when guidance relating to the Highway Design Guide would be released.  
Therefore in the absence of this guidance it was expected that the Council’s 
guide would be produced in the summer of 2004. 

• Public Conveniences – In response to a question from a local Member for 
Central Ward concerning the level of consultation undertaken during the 
review of Public Conveniences, the Director of Environment reported that a 
wide range of consultation had been undertaken.  However, in view of the 
Edgar Street Grid proposal, he anticipated that further consultation would be 
undertaken in due course concerning the conveniences in Blackfriars Street, 

2



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 2ND APRIL, 2004 

Hereford.

• Public Rights of Way – The Director of Environment reported that a number 
of issues raised by the review had been included in the draft PROW 
Management Strategy which was currently subject to consultation.  Town and 
Parish Councils had been invited to contribute to the draft strategy, which 
would also be considered by the Herefordshire Local Access Forum.  
However, he commented that implementation of the final strategy was reliant 
on adequate resources being available.  It was suggested that a brief update 
on progress to the strategy be made to future meetings. 

• Highway Maintenance – The Head of Engineering and Transportation 
reported that the Winter Gritting leaflet, based on a number of Beacon 
Council publications, had been published.  The Highway and Street Services 
leaflet had also been published and was being circulated to Members.  The 
Committee noted the intention that information contained in the leaflets would 
also be made available via the Council’s website.  However, Members were 
keen to retain access to street works data via the easier to use Council 
Intranet system. 

RESOLVED: That the report on the implementation of the Best Value Review 
Improvement Plans be noted and update reports on the progress 
of the PROW Management Strategy be presented to future 
meetings.

64. MONITORING OF 2003/2004 PERFORMANCE INDICATORS - APRIL 2003 TO 
JANUARY 2004

 Members were updated on progress made by the Environment Directorate for the 
eight months April 2003 to January 2004 towards achieving all of the performance 
indicators / targets which appeared in the Council’s Performance Plan. 

The report of exceptions to the targeted performance was attached to the report at 
Appendix 1. 

The Committee debated the performance figures and noted the following principal 
points:

• BV82b – Waste Management.  The Director of Environment acknowledged 
that while only one target had been reported upon under exceptions 
reporting, waste management was a major issue and he expected to make a 
fuller report to the Committee in June in accordance with the proposed 
revised Committee work programme to be discussed later on the agenda. 

• BV199 – Local Street and Environmental Cleanliness – It was reported that 
this inspection target was highly dependent on when, and how often, streets 
were inspected.  A summary of the inspection process would be provided for 
members of the Committee. 

• Penalty Charge Notices issued – The Committee noted that during the 
introduction of the new scheme caution had been taken over the staffing 
levels.  However, now that more accurate data was available staffing levels 
had been increased.  In relation to the percentage of penalty charge notices 
appeal cases “lost” at appeal, the Head of Engineering and Transportation 
reported that he was satisfied that Herefordshire compared well against the 
benchmark authorities. 

• The Head of Engineering and Transportation assured the Committee that, 
while a new contractor had been appointed for street lighting works, the 
contract would continue to be monitored. 

3



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 2ND APRIL, 2004 

• BV166a & BV166b – The Head of Environmental Health and Trading 
Standards reported that these indicators had been revised by external 
auditors and now included elements of housing and taxi licencing 
enforcement respectively.  However, he was investigating whether the 
original targets could be revised to take account of the changes. 

RESOLVED: That the exceptions monitoring in relation to the 2003/04 
performance indicators for the period April 2003 to January 2004 
be noted. 

65. REVIEW OF PARKING STRATEGY  

 The Committee were informed of progress on the review of the county-wide car 
parking strategy. 

The Director of Environment reported that in accordance with this Committee’s 
decision in January 2004 (minute 54 refers), the Parking Strategy Review Group had 
met and discussed a detailed Scoping Statement for the review. 

The Chairman of the Review Group (Councillor J. Goodwin) informed the Committee 
that a variety of information had been requested from officers and that preliminary 
consideration had been given to the range of consultation to be employed.

The Committee briefly debated a number of issues concerning parking e.g. resident 
parking schemes, particularly in relation to parking for tradesmen working at 
residential properties, and concessionary parking which would be considered as part 
of the review. 

RESOLVED: That the progress report on the review of the Count-wide car 
Parking Strategy be noted.

66. POLYTUNNEL REVIEW WORKING GROUP  

 The Committee received an update report on the work of the Polytunnel Review 
Working Group. 

The Chairman of the Polytunnel Review Working Group (Councillor T. Hunt) reported 
that, to date, three meetings of the Group had been held.  The Group had received a 
good response to an invitation to the public to express their written views on the 
success, or otherwise, of the operation of the Voluntary Code of Practice to Control 
the Siting of Polytunnels in Herefordshire.  The Group had heard evidence and 
comments from a wide range of polytunnel objectors and supporters, together with 
evidence from other parties.  He further reported that due to the amount of 
information being considered, the review would probably take slightly longer than 
expected and he anticipated that the report of the Working Group would be 
presented to the Committee towards the end of May or into June 2004. 

RESOLVED: That the update report on the work of the Polytunnel Review 
Working Group be noted and the revised reporting date be 
accepted.

67. ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2004/5  

 The Committee were invited to consider an amended work programme following the 
reduction to four scheduled meetings during the 2004/05 Council meeting cycle. 

RESOLVED: That subject to the inclusion of an update report to the meeting 

4



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 2ND APRIL, 2004 

scheduled for September, 2004 on the review of the of Public 
Rights of Way Management Strategy, the proposed work 
programme be accepted.

The meeting ended at 11.30 a.m. CHAIRMAN

5



6



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 18TH JUNE 2004 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Trish Marsh, Environmental Sustainability 
Officer on 01432 261930. 

GEMReport0.doc 

GEM PERFORMANCE 2003/4 
Report By: DIRECTOR OF THE ENVIRONMENT 

 

Purpose 
1. To review the Council’s environmental management / ISO 14001 system to ensure 

that it continues to be suitable, adequate and effective and deliver improvement in 
environmental performance. 

 

Financial Implications 
2.  Objectives and targets are met within set budgets and resources. 
 

Considerations 
3. GEM (Good Environmental Management) helps deliver the Council’s corporate 

objective to be “responsive to local needs by protecting the physical environment” 
and its environmental policy commitment to “demonstrate continual improvement of 
its environment performance” across all Directorates. 

4. The Council’s certification to ISO 14001, the international environmental 
management standard, helps to underline the importance of the environment to the 
Council at a corporate level. 

5. Reviews give an opportunity to address the possible need for changes to the policy, 
objectives and other Environmental Management System (EMS) elements in the light 
of audit results, performance against objectives and targets, concerns of relevant 
interested parties, changing circumstances and the Council’s commitment to 
environmental improvement. 

 

6. External surveillance 
During 2003/4 the Council received 2 surveillance visits from its external certifiers, 
SGS.  

Corrective Actions (CA) raised by the Certifiers dropped from 4 in July 2003 to 1 in 
February 2004. This CA related to close out of internal audits and recording of non-
conformances. 
 

7. GEM Internal Audits  
GEM Internal Auditors drawn from all directorates undertook 59 audits last year of 
premises, services and contracts.  Audits identified the following areas of weakness, 
which will be addressed over the coming year:- Waste management and 
documentation, Emergency preparedness including fire drills etc, Control of chemical 
storage, including cleaning materials, Training, awareness and communication, Poor 
document control – eg use of out of date procedures/templates and Control of 
contractors.    
 

8. Performance against objectives 

The GEM programme for 2003/4 contained forty eight targets, grouped under eleven 
objectives. The objectives were medium term aspirations for areas of improvement 
and are therefore not easily “completed”. Good progress was made on seven 

AGENDA ITEM 6

7



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 18TH JUNE 2004 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Trish Marsh, Environmental Sustainability 
Officer on 01432 261930. 

GEMReport0.doc 

objectives. On the others there have been some difficulties, though progress has 
been made. See Appendix 1, “Summary by objective”, for more information.   

The authority was placed in the top quintile of local authority respondents in the West 
Midlands Environmental Index 2003, run by Business in the Community, for the 
second year running, improving its score by nearly 10%.  

 

9. Performance against targets for 2003/4 

Twenty nine targets were completed by the due date set. During the year corrective 
actions were raised for nineteen targets. Many of these targets were delayed 
because processes of which they were a part took longer than anticipated, for 
instance development of the portal and decisions on depot requirements. Eight of 
these targets have now been completed and another is near completion. Ten targets 
have been carried through to the 2004/5 GEM programme. Further information for 
each corrected target is recorded on the Corrective Action Register. The end of year 
report on 03/04 (Appendix 2) gives information on performance against each target 
due during 2003/4. 
 

10. Partnership with HJS and Owen Williams 
The contracts with Herefordshire Jarvis Services (HJS) and Owen Williams signed in 
September 2003 set out clearly the importance of the environment. 

The outcome specification (SDA Schedule 8, section 12) states that  

 “The Contract will contribute to the following Council outcomes :- 

      …To protect and enhance the environment by 

• Greater care of the environment 

• The preservation of Herefordshire’s Character and Heritage 

• Employing Environmentally sound working practices 

• Utilising environmentally sound materials 

• Promoting the Recycling of ‘waste’ materials.” 

Section 17 on Environmental Management lays this requirement out in more detail. 

HJS achieved combined certification to ISO 14001 (environmental management), 
ISO 9001 (quality) and ISO 18001 (occupational health & safety) in April 2004.  
Owen Williams are committed to achieving ISO 14001 certification for their Hereford 
Office by June 2005 (GEM target 2.3). 

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for the partnership relating to sustainability are 
currently being discussed. This is a target in the 04/05 programme and work has 
already started. 

There are currently no specific environmental specifications set for the print and 
catering functions carried out by HJS. These need to be set and performance 
monitored for these two services, which are used increasingly widely across the 
Council.  

 

11.  Communication 
The findings of the Staff Opinion Survey 2003 showed the number of respondents 
aware of GEM was up from 64% to 71% since the 2002 survey. However the 
numbers who understood how their job impacted on the environment remained static 
at 63%. More effort is therefore needed to get the key environmental impacts of their 

8



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 18TH JUNE 2004 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Trish Marsh, Environmental Sustainability 
Officer on 01432 261930. 

GEMReport0.doc 

work across to existing and new staff.  A leaflet was circulated to all Heads of Service 
and included in the Team Briefing in January 2004 to address this point and is 
available in the Members’ Room.  

 

12. Concerns of relevant interested parties (including members) and/or new 
environmental issues  
Information security  
The reuse/recycling of redundant Council IT equipment was the subject of close 
scrutiny due to concerns about confidential data on the hard drives. A protocol for 
scrubbing this data has now been agreed between ICT Services, Information 
Security and Worcester Lifestyles. This includes a more stringent erasure procedure 
for hard drives and servers containing potentially sensitive data. 

GM crops 
There was lively public interest in this subject, prompting a review of the Council’s 
position. The Environmental Sustainability Unit (ESU) organised two in-depth 
briefings for relevant members, including the chair and vice chair of Environment 
Scrutiny Committee. After these the Cabinet Member decided to reiterate the 
Council’s opposition to the growing of commercial GM crops.  

Procurement from West Mercia Supplies (WMS) 
The ESU has worked with WMS to source recycled paper that is compatible with 
Council photocopiers and printers. Offices are now expected to use this paper. 
Discussions with WMS about the standard of remanufactured cartridges for printers 
are currently underway. 
 

13. 2004/05 programme 

The GEM programme for 2004/5 (Appendix 3) has been drawn up in conjunction with 
the GEM group and relevant officers and managers. The 02/03 objectives have been 
consolidated and made more quantifiable. The nine objectives set for the year 
include :-  

• 1% energy reduction in Council operational buildings,  

• 1% reduction in business miles per head and 5% rise in public transport/cycling 

• Waste recycling to cover 90% of major Council sites 
 

14. Extension of scope 
During the coming year the scope of the certificated ISO 14001 system will roll out to 
cover all Council activities and services (agreed by CXMT in July 2003). In July the 
scope will extend to cover Waste and Transportation. In February 2005 the scope will 
cover remaining functions, including policy, enforcement and procurement. It is 
recommended that the Council’s environmental policy be reviewed next year when 
roll out of certification is complete.   
 

15. World Environment Day event 
This public event in High Town on 9th June is being co-ordinated by the ESU. As part 
of the event, the public will be invited to contribute to the consultation on the national 
sustainable development strategy, “Taking It On”, which is being updated this year. 
Cllr P J Edwards (Cabinet Member, Environment) will be opening the event at 10am 
and all members are welcome to visit any time between then and the close at 4.pm. 

9



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 18TH JUNE 2004 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Trish Marsh, Environmental Sustainability 
Officer on 01432 261930. 

GEMReport0.doc 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
THAT the report be noted, subject to any comments Members may wish 

to make to the Cabinet Member (Environment). 

 

Attached 

Background Papers 

• Appendix 1: Summary of performance against Objectives (2003/4) 

• Appendix 2:  Performance on GEM targets due in  03/04  

• Appendix 3:  GEM Objectives and targets for 04/05 

 

 

The GEM staff leaflet and end of year report on each GEM target due in 2003/4 are available 
in the Members' Library or on request. Further information on GEM is available from the 
Environmental Sustainability Unit or in the GEM folder on the Intranet Info Library 
  

10



Appendix 1: Progress on Herefordshire Council’s GEM objectives in 2003 - 4 
 

Objective Progress 
1  Create opportunities 
for waste reduction, 
recycling  and the use of 
recycled material (WM) 

☺ 

Purchase of recycled paper from WMS for Council photocopiers and 
printers is now set as standard.  
Office recycling contract has been extended to cover further Council 
offices and materials. Sales of bags for this collection have risen 
from 233 per month to 404 per month and 10 tonnes of paper was 
collected for recycling in the final quarter of 2003/4. 
Contract has been signed with Worcester Lifestyles to take 
redundant Council IT equipment for refurbishment and resale. 
Used lamps from streetlights and illuminated signs are now recycled. 
Computers are now networked at Brockington and Plough Lane to 
enable double siding and cut down numbers of printers. 

2  Continue to comply 
with legal requirements 
on pollution prevention, 
chemical handling and 
storage and work 
towards good practice in 
identified areas (PP)  
                  

Salt storage has been reviewed and amended to reduce stocks kept 
outside. Covers are now in use for such stocks. 
Recent legal changes make salting a duty for Councils. A leaflet for 
the public on gritting routes was produced. 
The drains at Broad St car park Leominster have been surveyed and 
the results given to the Car Parking Manager. 
Problems with rural Sewage Treatment Works have been tackled 
and the STWs put onto a maintenance contract. 

3  Ensure that improved 
control systems relating 
to the Council’s 
emergency 
preparedness are in 
place; (EP) 
               ☺ 

Emergency plans for each site and emergency preparedness are 
audited under both GEM and Health and Safety.  
Site plans are provided as part of the Property Management File for 
each building. 
The Council’s system for reporting Accidents and Incidents on 
PS01s now includes environmental incidents.    

4  Comply with legal 
requirements on 
contaminated land 
management in regard to 
the Council's own sites;  
(CL)        ☺ 

Action Plans for the Council’s three main landfill sites (Leominster, 
Strangford & Dower) have been drawn up. Desktop studies on 
contamination have been going on through the year and 
investigations continue.    
The Council’s Contaminated Land Strategy (2001) will be overhauled 
in 04/05. This will include review of the timetable for other Council 
sites.  
Environmental Health also advise on contamination issues relating to 
purchase, sales or redevelopment of land, for instance those recently 
uncovered at Aylestone Hill Country Park. 

5  Improve supplier and 
contractor environmental 
performance through the 
operation of the 
Procurement Strategy 
and the Contracts 
Procedure Rules (CP)   
              

The new contracts with HJS and Owen Williams state that “The 
Partnership shall demonstrate that the robustness of its 
environmental management by ensuring that partners seek to obtain 
ISO 14001 accreditation for all relevant services early in the life of 
the Partnership.” (Clause 3.4) and that “the Partnership shall be 
responsible for ensuring that all service delivery encourages 
environmental sustainability.” 

6  Increase levels of 
awareness and training 
of Council staff through 
employee induction, 

GEM is included in Council induction and now also covered for 
Social Care & Strategic Housing staff. A leaflet for existing and 
temporary staff has been completed and circulated. 
A short easy-read monthly bulletin, GEMgen, is produced by the 

11



ongoing development 
and provision for officers 
with particular needs or 
responsibilities; (TA) 
               ☺ 

ESU and circulated to staff on request. 
Three ‘GEM Training for Managers’ sessions ran over the winter and 
a session for Members took place in January 2004. 
Seminars on invasive weeds with DEFRA, Wood Energy and 
Sustainable Urban Drainage were attended by officers from a 
number of services. A session on climate change for members ran in 
November 2003. 
Several GEM sessions for staff groups, eg at Learning Disability Day 
Centres, have been run. However, job specific training is generally 
the responsibly of the service. 
The Staff Opinion Survey showed over 70% of respondents aware of 
GEM.  63% of staff understand how their job impacts on the 
environment    

7  Establish the energy 
consumption per metre 
squared for operational 
council property,  
 enabling future 
efficiencies to be made   

 
 
 
 
 
 
and increase the use of 
energy from renewable 
sources; (ECW) 
            ☺  

Considerable strides in improving data sets and rectifying billing 
errors have been made but anomalies and gaps remain due to the 
size of the portfolio. There are over 200 significant sites, about half of 
which are schools. New software (Stark Essentials) was purchased 
in winter 2003 to collate data, check its accuracy & enable electronic 
input between WMS and ourselves.  
Estimates do not give an accurate picture of consumption so 
Property Services liaised with WMS to identify buildings where 
meters have not been read for some time. As a result some buildings 
were identified as not on the consolidated contract with WMS. These 
are in the process of being added. PS staff have read some meters 
and Officers in Charge of Buildings are reminded monthly of the 
need to read meters. 
Renewables: From December 2003, 100% of the electricity needed 
for all Council sites for the following year is from renewable sources 
procured via WMS. Streetlights are now running on 100% CHP 
(Combined Heat & Power). This is a substantial rise from the 
previous figure of 10% renewables. As the demand for renewables 
strengthened, future purchase at a comparable price cannot be 
assumed. 
Both these areas are estimated to contribute a reduction in the 
carbon dioxide burden from the Authority’s operations by 7,500 
tonnes per year. This represents approximately 1.8% of the total 
carbon dioxide associated with Herefordshire’s entire electrical 
energy consumption. 

8  Improve existing data 
on Council transport use 
and identify opportunities  
to reduce the 
environmental impact;  
(TU)     ☺ 
 

A comprehensive Staff Transport survey to all staff attracted an 
excellent response rate of 48%. Results are now feeding into a Staff 
Travel Action Plan. This aims to increase choice and reduce single 
occupancy car use. 
The Social Care and Education Transport Teams are now co-located 
at Blackfriars to enable joint working. Scheduling software is now in 
place and is moving into the operational stage.   

9  Reduce risk relating to 
the Council’s tenant 
management and the 
property portfolio and 
increase tenant 
awareness   (PM)         

New external tenants now fill in 'Environmental Risk Assessment for 
tenants (GEMOP TQ30)' relating to their operations. 
Asbestos policy has been written and circulated to internal tenants 
and smallholdings.  
Customised Property Management Files have been produced and 
distributed to all internal tenants/Officers in Charge of Buildings. 

12



10  Scope opportunities 
for integration of GEM 
into corporate 
performance 
management. (CPM) 
             ☺ 

The new Head of Performance Management has attended GEM 
team meetings. She is looking at the options for streamlining and co-
ordinating performance reporting, including that on GEM. 
Bimonthly reports to Environment Management Team and the GEM 
group. Six monthly reports to Cabinet member and Environment 
Scrutiny. 

11 Build on existing work 
to protect and enhance 
biodiversity on Council 
owned land. (BIO) 
             ☺ 

A preliminary assessment of the environmental designations of land 
owned or managed by the Council was undertaken in March 2004. 
This included Highways, Parks, Education and Property land 
currently digitised on GIS. 

 
The GEM programme only captures some of the Council’s environmental work. Here are a 
few highlights of other work though the year that has helped to improve Council 
environmental performance and profile. These clearly demonstrate the way that services 
right across the authority are responding to the Council’s corporate objective to protect the 
environment. 
 

Scheme Description Lead 
Bridge-It 
scheme 

Groundwork staff are now based with Economic 
Development, offering subsidised events and advice 
to local businesses to improve their environmental 
performance. 

Economic 
Development, P&C 

Bridge Sollars 
bridge 
replacement 

This project was undertaken in close co-operation with 
the Environment Agency and English Nature to protect 
the River Wye, a Site of Special Scientific Interest, 
and avoid work in the river at sensitive periods.  

Engineering 
Services, Env 

Castle Pool Investigation of the options for dredging the pool and 
using water from a borehole rather than the main river.

Parks & 
Countryside, P&C 

Eco schools The number of Eco-schools registered in the county 
has risen from 20 (March 2003) to 39 (March 2004) 
The number of Eco-schools awards has risen from 6 
to 8 over the year. 

Environmental 
Sustainability Unit 
(ESU), Env 

EnviroAbility Have entered into a contract with WCR to collect 
recyclables door to door in the Ross area, raising their 
profile and extending recycling levels. 

Learning Disability 
Day Service, 
SCSH 

Herefordshire 
Business 
Partnership 

Runs popular seminars for local businesses on 
environmental subjects such as waste 

Environmental 
Health, Env 

ISO 14001 Extended certification to cover Learning Disability Day 
Opportunities in July 2003. Extended to cover ICT 
services and further Council premises with Property 
Management Files in February 2004. 

Co-ordinated by 
ESU, Environment  

Planit Green The Marshfield Centre are developing an advice 
centre for ecological paints and building materials at 
their Leominster site. 

Learning Disability 
Day Service, 
SCSH 

West Midlands 
Environmental 
Index 

In top quintile for Local Authorities in the West 
Midlands Environmental Index 2003 and 2004 
(brought out by ‘Business in the Community’)    

Co-ordinated by 
ESU, Environment  

Whitecross 
High School 
PFI 

High environmental specification were set for this 
major project. Negotiations with the preferred bidder 
are progressing. 

Education & 
Property Services 
 

 

13



GEM group, May 11th 2004 

14



P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
n 

G
E

M
 ta

rg
et

s 
du

e 
in

 2
00

3/
4

O
T

 
T

ar
ge

t t
ex

t
L

ea
d 

M
an

ag
er

L
ea

d 
O

ff
ic

er
D

u
e 

da
te

P
ro

gr
es

s
D

on
e?

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

F
ile

 r
ef

01
 

1
In

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 

m
an

ag
er

s 
an

d 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 in

 C
ha

rg
e 

on
 

w
as

te
.  

T
 L

in
ds

ey
 J

on
es

L 
G

ar
ne

r/
 S

 
Ja

m
es

01
/0

3/
20

04
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 fo
llo

w
 u

p 
w

as
te

 a
ud

it 
de

la
ye

d 
as

 s
ta

ff 
re

al
lo

ca
t e

to
 ti

lin
g 

fo
r 

se
gr

eg
at

ed
 w

as
te

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n.

 W
as

te
 a

ud
ite

d 
as

 p
ar

t
of

 G
E

M
 s

ite
 a

ud
its

. P
ro

ce
du

re
 fo

r 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 in

 C
ha

rg
e 

on
 w

as
te

 
an

d 
of

fic
e 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
up

da
te

d.
 (

29
/3

)

31
/0

3/
20

04

01
 

2
E

xp
an

d 
of

fic
e 

pa
pe

r 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

sc
he

m
e 

to
 fu

rt
he

r 
C

ou
nc

il 
si

te
s,

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
of

 c
os

t-
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ex
te

rn
al

 
co

lle
ct

io
n.

 T
 L

in
ds

ey
 

Jo
ne

s
S

 J
am

es
/ L

 
G

ar
ne

r
01

/0
3/

20
04

R
ec

yc
lin

g 
bi

ns
 o

ffe
re

d 
to

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 in
 C

ha
rg

e 
of

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 

(O
iC

s)
 b

y 
E

S
U

. C
on

tr
ac

t s
ig

ne
d 

w
ith

 D
av

e 
B

ak
er

 in
cl

ud
es

 
fu

rt
he

r 
m

at
er

ia
ls

. O
iC

s 
ci

rc
ul

at
ed

 in
 A

ug
us

t  
an

d 
D

ec
 w

ith
 in

fo
 

on
 th

is
. S

ch
em

e 
no

w
 c

ov
er

s 
29

 o
ffi

ce
s 

a 
w

ee
k 

an
d 

sa
le

s 
of

 
ba

gs
 a

re
 u

p 
by

 8
8%

.  
 (

27
/3

)

01
/0

3/
20

04

01
 

3
S

co
pe

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 o

f e
xt

en
di

ng
 u

se
 o

f 
on

-s
cr

ee
n 

au
th

or
is

at
io

n,
 th

us
 r

ed
uc

in
g

ne
ed

 fo
r 

pa
pe

r 
fo

rm
s 

J 
B

at
es

E
 P

aw
le

y
01

/0
3/

20
04

A
 n

um
be

r 
of

 o
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 s
til

l b
ei

ng
 e

xp
lo

re
d 

bu
t i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

ha
s 

be
en

 d
el

ay
ed

 d
ue

 to
 d

el
ay

s 
in

 g
et

tin
g 

th
e 

pl
at

fo
rm

 
op

er
at

io
na

l. 
N

ow
 ta

rg
et

 1
.4

 in
 G

E
M

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

fo
r 

04
/0

5.

01
 

4
E

nc
ou

ra
ge

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 p
ap

er
 u

se
 v

ia
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 u

se
 o

f c
om

pu
te

r 
sy

st
em

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
 o

n-
sc

re
en

 
co

rr
ec

tio
n,

 a
nd

 r
eu

se
 s

uc
h 

as
 o

ld
 

en
ve

lo
pe

s 
fo

r 
in

te
rn

al
 u

se

 E
S

U
/ C

hr
is

 
Jo

ne
s

N
ic

k 
W

in
w

oo
d/

 
M

an
ag

er
s

01
/1

1/
20

0 3
G

E
M

ge
n 

in
 S

ep
t l

oo
ke

d 
at

 ti
ps

 a
nd

 p
itf

al
ls

. T
he

se
 w

er
e 

ex
pa

nd
ed

 in
 u

pd
at

ed
  "

W
ha

t i
s 

G
E

M
" 

le
af

le
t D

ec
 0

3.
 (

6/
1)

06
/0

1/
20

04

01
 

5
In

cr
ea

se
 u

se
 o

f r
ec

yc
le

d 
pa

pe
r 

pr
od

uc
ts

C
on

tr
ac

ts
 P

an
el

E
S

U
01

/0
9/

20
03

P
ol

ic
y 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
us

e 
of

 1
00

%
 r

ec
yc

le
d 

pa
pe

r 
ci

rc
ul

at
ed

 b
y 

M
 

T
itt

le
 +

 r
es

ul
ts

 fo
llo

w
ed

 u
p.

 P
ro

m
ot

io
n 

of
 W

M
S

 r
ec

yc
le

d 
pr

od
uc

ts
 in

 G
E

M
ge

n 
in

  J
un

e 
an

d 
A

ug
.  

F
ig

ur
es

 o
n 

up
ta

ke
 

re
ce

iv
ed

 fr
om

 W
M

S
 a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
fo

llo
w

ed
 u

p 
by

 M
ar

y 
T

itt
le

's
 

te
am

.(
27

/3
)

15
/0

8/
20

03

02
 

1
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 a
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

su
rv

ey
 a

t B
ro

ad
 

S
t C

ar
 p

ar
k,

 L
eo

m
in

st
er

 C
 B

irk
s

A
 T

er
ry

01
/1

0/
20

03
C

om
pl

et
ed

.  
M

ic
k 

M
or

ris
, C

ar
 P

ar
ki

ng
 M

an
ag

er
, b

rie
fe

d 
by

 
A

nd
re

w
 T

er
ry

 a
nd

 s
et

 o
f d

ra
w

in
gs

 to
 b

e 
se

nt
. F

ol
lo

w
 u

p 
w

or
k 

on
 b

id
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
dr

ai
na

ge
 w

ill
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 in
 th

e 
N

ew
 

Y
ea

r.
(1

1/
03

)

03
/1

1/
20

04
E

st
at

es
 S

ec
tio

n

02
 

2
R

ev
ie

w
 s

al
t p

ro
vi

si
on

 in
 a

ll 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
p 

pl
an

s 
fo

r 
st

or
ag

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

t T
ho

rn
 a

nd
 e

ls
ew

he
r e

S
 O

at
es

T
 D

av
ie

s
01

/0
9/

20
03

S
to

ck
 r

ed
uc

ed
 a

t e
xt

er
na

l l
oc

at
io

ns
 to

 m
ak

e 
co

ve
rin

g 
ea

si
er

. 
S

to
ck

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
at

 K
in

gs
la

nd
 &

 B
ur

co
tt 

(c
ov

er
ed

) 
pl

us
 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
st

oc
k 

he
ld

 b
y 

M
50

 (
un

co
ve

re
d)

 a
nd

 P
on

tr
ila

s 
(c

ov
er

ed
).

 N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 r
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
at

 T
ho

rn
 c

on
tin

ue
. L

aw
 h

a
no

w
 c

ha
ng

ed
 to

 m
ak

e 
sa

lti
ng

 a
 d

ut
y.

  W
in

te
r 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
Le

af
le

t f
or

 p
ub

lic
 is

su
ed

 J
an

 0
4.

 (
26

/1
)

01
/0

9/
20

03

02
 

3
D

ev
el

op
 p

la
ns

 fo
r 

ne
w

 d
ep

ot
s 

at
 R

os
s 

an
d 

B
ro

m
ya

rd
 w

ith
 im

pr
ov

ed
 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 fo
r 

lo
rr

y 
w

as
hi

ng
, 

st
or

ag
e 

et
c

C
 B

irk
s

A
 T

er
ry

01
/0

3/
20

04
D

el
ay

ed
 b

y 
de

ci
si

on
s 

by
 S

 O
at

es
 o

n 
sa

lt 
ba

rn
s 

an
d 

H
JS

 o
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 m
od

es
 o

f w
or

ki
ng

. N
ow

 ta
rg

et
 6

.6
 in

 0
4/

05
 

G
E

M
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
re

 B
ro

m
ya

rd
 d

ep
ot

. 2
7.

3

R
ep

or
t c

o-
or

di
na

te
d 

by
 th

e 
E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l S
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 U

ni
t, 

ex
t 1

93
0/

33
63

, o
n 

be
ha

lf 
of

 th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
G

E
M

 g
ro

up
.

02
 J

un
e 

20
04

P
ag

e 
1 

of
 4

15



O
T

 
T

ar
ge

t t
ex

t
L

ea
d 

M
an

ag
er

L
ea

d 
O

ff
ic

er
D

u
e 

da
te

P
ro

gr
es

s
D

on
e?

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

F
ile

 r
ef

03
 

1
In

te
gr

at
e 

re
le

va
nt

 G
E

M
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

to
 th

e 
 Io

S
H

 c
ou

rs
e 

fo
r 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 in
 

C
ha

rg
e 

an
d 

H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 

R
 R

ee
d

T
 M

ar
sh

/ J
 

C
la

rk
e

01
/0

6/
20

03
D

on
e.

 J
oh

n 
C

la
rk

e 
ha

s 
no

te
s 

of
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 c

ou
rs

e 
(1

/7
)

11
/0

6/
20

03

03
 

2
D

ev
el

op
 u

se
 o

f P
S

01
s 

to
 r

ec
or

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l i

nc
id

en
ts

 a
nd

 n
ea

r 
m

is
se

s 

R
 R

ee
d

T
 M

ar
sh

/ J
 

C
la

rk
e

01
/0

5/
20

03
F

or
m

s 
am

en
de

d 
 in

 li
gh

t o
f n

ew
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
an

d 
no

w
 h

ea
de

d 
'A

cc
id

en
t, 

In
ci

de
nt

 a
nd

 G
E

M
 r

ep
or

t f
or

m
'. 

F
or

m
s 

du
e 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pu

te
ris

ed
 a

nd
 o

n 
in

tr
an

et
 in

 A
pr

il 
04

 w
he

n 
P

er
so

nn
el

 m
ov

e
of

fic
es

. O
nc

e 
co

m
pu

te
ris

ed
, f

or
m

s 
w

hi
ch

 r
ef

 G
E

M
 w

ill
 

au
to

m
at

ic
al

ly
 r

ou
te

 to
 E

S
U

 (
6/

1/
04

)

29
/1

2/
20

03
C

ou
nc

il/
C

or
po

ra
te

H
ea

lth
 &

 S
af

et
y

03
 

3
R

ev
ie

w
 in

-h
ou

se
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
pr

ep
ar

ed
ne

ss
 n

ee
ds

 p
os

t 
H

C
S

 e
xt

er
na

lis
at

io
n

T
 M

ar
sh

/ J
 

C
la

rk
e/

 M
 

T
ho

m
as

01
/0

3/
20

04
S

ev
er

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
ou

ld
 c

al
l u

po
n 

H
JS

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
an

d 
sp

ill
 k

its
 in

 
th

e 
ca

se
 o

f s
pi

lls
 o

n 
ca

r 
pa

rk
s.

 A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

w
ith

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 is
 w

rit
te

n 
in

to
 th

e 
S

er
vi

ce
 L

ev
el

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ith
 

H
JS

.

01
/1

2/
20

03

04
 

1
U

se
 th

e 
de

sk
 to

p 
st

ud
ie

s 
of

 th
e 

3 
cl

os
ed

 w
as

te
 d

is
po

sa
l s

ite
s 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

cu
rr

en
tly

 k
no

w
n 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 in
fo

rm
 fu

tu
re

 
ac

tio
n 

an
d 

pr
es

en
t t

o 
C

ab
in

et
 m

em
be

r

 A
 T

ec
to

r
B

 C
ha

rt
re

s
01

/0
3/

20
04

Le
om

in
st

er
: s

ee
ki

ng
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

t A
ge

nc
y 

ap
pr

ov
al

 fo
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
ch

an
ge

s 
&

 u
nd

er
ta

ki
ng

 m
et

ha
ne

 o
xi

da
tio

n 
tr

ia
ls

. 
S

tr
an

gf
or

d:
 D

es
k 

T
op

 S
tu

dy
 (

D
T

S
) 

&
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 r
ep

or
t i

n.
 

D
ow

ar
d 

- 
D

T
S

 c
om

pl
et

e.
 A

ct
io

n 
P

la
ns

 fo
r 

al
l 3

 n
ow

 in
 p

la
ce

. 
C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
 n

ot
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

at
 p

re
se

nt
 a

s 
m

ea
su

re
s

w
ith

in
 c

ur
re

nt
 b

ud
ge

t. 
 W

or
k 

is
 s

til
l o

ng
oi

ng
 a

nd
 c

ap
ita

l b
id

 fo
r 

Le
om

in
st

er
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

.  
(2

9/
3)

04
/0

2/
20

04

04
 

3
S

et
 u

p 
G

IS
 s

ys
te

m
 c

ap
ab

le
 o

f s
to

rin
g,

 
vi

ew
in

g 
an

d 
ai

di
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
of

 c
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 la

nd
 

da
ta

A
 T

ec
to

r
B

 C
ha

rt
re

s
01

/0
5/

20
0 3

S
of

tw
ar

e 
(G

ro
un

dv
ie

w
) 

in
st

al
le

d.
 M

on
ito

r-
P

ro
 s

of
tw

ar
e 

bo
ug

ht
 

fo
r 

co
nt

am
in

at
ed

 la
nd

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
in

 u
se

. T
ak

in
g 

pa
rt

 in
 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
id

e 
G

IS
 r

ev
ie

w
 -

 r
ep

or
t s

ub
m

itt
ed

 to
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
P

ol
ic

y 
G

ro
up

. (
27

/8
)

15
/0

6/
20

03

05
 

2
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 g

oo
d 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
st

an
da

rd
s 

ar
e 

bu
ilt

 in
to

 th
e 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t o

f c
on

tr
ac

t a
nd

 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

 

G
 D

un
hi

ll
S

 G
yf

or
d

01
/0

9/
20

03
IS

O
 1

40
01

 c
om

m
itm

en
t i

s 
bu

ilt
 in

to
 th

e 
S

er
vi

ce
 L

ev
el

 
A

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 w

ith
 b

ot
h 

H
JS

 a
nd

 O
w

en
 W

ill
ia

m
s 

bu
t d

et
ai

l i
s 

no
t

ye
t c

le
ar

 in
 a

ll 
ar

ea
s.

 O
ng

oi
ng

 w
or

k 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
in

 th
is

 
im

po
rt

an
t a

re
a.

 H
JS

 h
av

e 
IS

O
 1

40
01

 c
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
vi

si
t b

oo
ke

d 
fo

r 
A

pr
il 

04
. (

29
/3

)

03
/0

9/
20

03

05
 

3
D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t t

ra
in

in
g 

fo
r 

cl
ie

nt
 a

nd
 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

fic
er

s 
 

T
 M

ar
sh

/R
 

M
an

is
e

01
/0

2/
20

04
N

o 
re

gi
st

er
 o

f c
lie

nt
 a

nd
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
fic

er
 in

 p
la

ce
 a

nd
 n

o 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t O

ffi
ce

r 
in

 p
os

t f
or

 m
os

t o
f y

ea
r.

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
st

ra
te

gy
 d

ue
 fo

r 
ov

er
ha

ul
 in

 s
pr

in
g 

04
.

05
 

4
R

un
 a

n 
E

co
se

ns
e 

co
ur

se
 ta

rg
et

ed
 a

t 
C

ou
nc

il 
su

pp
lie

rs
 a

nd
 te

na
nt

s 
T

 M
ar

sh
LA

 2
1 

O
ffi

ce
r

01
/1

2/
20

03
N

ow
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 G
ro

un
dw

or
k 

pr
oj

ec
t, 

ba
se

d 
at

 E
c 

D
ev

 a
t 

P
lo

ug
h 

La
ne

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
on

 c
ou

rs
es

 a
nd

 le
ct

ur
es

 w
id

el
y 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 to

 lo
ca

l f
irm

s/
S

M
E

s.
  H

JS
 p

ro
ce

ss
 fo

r 
ch

ec
ki

ng
 e

n v
co

m
pe

te
nc

e 
of

 s
ub

 c
on

tr
ac

to
rs

 in
 p

la
ce

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 r

eq
ue

st
 fo

r 
en

v 
po

lic
ie

s.
 (

20
/3

)

03
/1

1/
20

03

06
 

2
R

ep
or

t t
o 

C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
r 

fo
r 

th
e 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
on

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 G
E

M
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 &
 ta

rg
et

s 
 

S
 G

en
t

T
 M

ar
sh

01
/0

6/
20

03
R

ep
or

t o
n 

G
E

M
 a

nd
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

n 
20

02
/3

 ta
rg

et
s 

co
ns

id
er

ed
. F

ul
l y

ea
r 

re
po

rt
 d

ue
 J

un
e 

04
.

13
/0

6/
20

03
C

om
m

itt
ee

 p
ap

er
s

R
ep

or
t c

o-
or

di
na

te
d 

by
 th

e 
E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l S
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 U

ni
t, 

ex
t 1

93
0/

33
63

, o
n 

be
ha

lf 
of

 th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
G

E
M

 g
ro

up
.

02
 J

un
e 

20
04

P
ag

e 
2 

of
 4

16



O
T

 
T

ar
ge

t t
ex

t
L

ea
d 

M
an

ag
er

L
ea

d 
O

ff
ic

er
D

u
e 

da
te

P
ro

gr
es

s
D

on
e?

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

F
ile

 r
ef

06
 

3
Im

pr
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 a

nd
 u

se
r 

fr
ie

nd
lin

es
s 

of
 G

E
M

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 th

e
in

tr
an

et

T
 M

ar
sh

S
 L

lo
yd

01
/0

7/
20

03
B

in
de

rs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
ha

se
d 

ou
t a

nd
 h

yp
er

lin
ks

 u
se

d 
in

st
ea

d.
 A

di
ag

ra
m

 fo
rm

at
 is

 b
ei

ng
 tr

ia
lle

d 
at

 p
re

se
nt

 (
29

/3
)

01
/0

7/
20

03

06
 

4
Im

pr
ov

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r 
st

af
f s

o 
it 

is
 

ea
si

er
 to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

w
hi

ch
 a

sp
ec

ts
 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 a

re
 r

el
ev

an
t f

or
 th

ei
r 

se
rv

ic
e.

   
  

T
 M

ar
sh

S
 L

lo
yd

01
/0

7/
20

03
A

sp
ec

ts
 li

st
 a

nd
 r

eg
is

te
r 

ov
er

ha
ul

ed
 a

nd
 im

pa
ct

s 
st

an
da

rd
is

ed
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
A

sp
ec

ts
 p

ro
fo

rm
a 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
pi

lo
te

d.
 3

 y
ea

r 
re

vi
ew

 o
f A

sp
ec

ts
 s

ta
rt

ed
 in

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
4.

 (
29

/3
).

01
/0

7/
20

03

06
 

5
R

un
 s

em
in

ar
 o

n 
no

xi
ou

s 
w

ee
ds

 w
ith

 
in

pu
t f

ro
m

 D
E

F
R

A
E

S
U

/D
E

F
R

A
01

/0
8/

20
03

S
tu

de
nt

 p
la

ce
m

en
t w

ith
 E

S
U

 fr
om

 J
ul

y 
he

lp
ed

 o
rg

an
is

e 
th

is
. 

S
em

in
ar

 w
ith

 g
ue

st
 s

pe
ak

er
 fr

om
 D

E
F

R
A

 w
as

 w
el

l a
tte

nd
ed

 
an

d 
w

el
l r

ec
ei

ve
d 

on
 8

/9
/0

3 
. R

ev
is

ed
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

on
 m

et
ho

ds
 o

f
co

nt
ro

l i
ss

ue
d 

D
ec

 0
3.

 (
7/

1)

08
/0

9/
20

03

07
 

1
D

ev
el

op
 s

pr
ea

ds
he

et
 fo

r 
en

er
gy

 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r 
al

l 
op

er
at

io
na

l p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 O
D

P
M

.

C
 B

irk
s

A
 B

al
l

01
/0

7/
20

0 3
E

ne
rg

y 
co

st
s 

fo
r 

02
/0

3 
re

po
rt

ed
 in

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n 
fo

r
81

%
 o

f o
pe

ra
tio

na
l p

ro
pe

rt
y 

ar
ea

. S
ta

rk
 E

ne
rg

y 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

&
 

T
ar

ge
tin

g 
S

ys
te

m
 d

at
ab

as
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

d 
to

 c
ov

er
 c

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

a
al

l o
pe

ra
tio

na
l p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s.
 F

irs
t p

op
ul

at
ed

 w
ith

 th
os

e 
pr

op
er

tie
s

w
ith

 fu
ll 

da
ta

 s
et

 fo
r 

B
V

18
0a

; h
is

to
ric

al
 d

at
a 

fo
r 

ot
he

r 
pr

op
er

tie
s

is
 n

ow
 b

ei
ng

 e
nt

er
ed

. (
2/

7)

01
/1

2/
20

03
B

V
LP

P
 &

 A
M

P
 J

ul
y 

20
03

07
 

2
Id

en
tif

y 
w

or
st

 p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

bu
ild

in
gs

, 
po

te
nt

ia
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 fu
nd

in
g 

op
tio

ns
 to

 c
ar

ry
 th

es
e 

ou
t  

J 
B

ur
to

n
C

 E
ld

rid
ge

01
/0

3/
20

04
D

on
e 

vi
a 

B
V

P
 1

80
a 

pr
oc

es
s.

 S
ta

rk
 s

of
tw

ar
e 

pa
ck

ag
e 

to
  

im
pr

ov
e 

da
ta

 li
nk

 w
ith

 W
M

S
 n

ow
 in

st
al

le
d 

an
d 

be
in

g 
po

pu
la

te
d

w
ith

 d
at

a.
 R

ep
or

ts
 s

ho
w

in
g 

po
or

ly
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
bu

ild
in

gs
 n

ow
 

st
ar

tin
g 

to
 b

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
 (

27
/1

).
 P

ro
po

sa
l f

or
 e

xt
ra

 fi
na

nc
e 

fr
om

 
C

ar
bo

n 
T

ru
st

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 b

ut
 r

ej
ec

te
d 

in
 th

is
 r

ou
nd

.. 
T

ra
ns

fe
rr

e d
to

 ta
rg

et
 4

.4
 in

 0
4/

05
 G

E
M

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e.

07
 

3
E

st
ab

lis
h 

a 
sy

st
em

 fo
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

tin
g 

w
at

er
 c

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

to
 

be
co

m
e 

op
er

at
io

na
l f

or
 2

00
4/

5

J 
B

ur
to

n
C

 E
ld

rid
ge

01
/0

3/
20

04
In

iti
al

 c
on

su
m

pt
io

n 
da

ta
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

fr
om

 W
el

sh
 W

at
er

. 
N

um
er

ou
s 

ga
ps

 a
nd

 in
co

ns
is

te
nc

ie
s 

in
 s

et
. (

27
/8

) 
S

ec
on

d 
su

bs
et

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
Ja

n 
04

 s
ho

w
s 

si
m

ila
r 

pr
ob

le
m

s.
 R

ol
le

d 
in

to
 

ta
rg

et
 4

.4
 in

 0
4/

05
 G

E
M

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e.

07
 

4
In

ve
st

ig
at

e 
op

tio
ns

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f r

en
ew

ab
le

s 
in

 th
e 

en
er

gy
 s

up
pl

y 
ag

re
em

en
t

J 
B

ur
to

n
C

 E
ld

rid
ge

01
/1

1/
20

03
10

0%
 r

en
ew

ab
le

s 
fr

om
 N

po
w

er
 v

ia
 W

M
S

 s
ec

ur
ed

 fo
r 

al
l s

ite
s 

fo
r 

12
 m

on
th

s:
 s

ub
 1

00
 k

W
  f

ro
m

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

03
 a

nd
 o

ve
r 

10
0k

W
 s

ite
s 

fr
om

 O
ct

 0
3.

 (
7/

10
) 

10
0%

 r
en

ew
ab

le
s 

co
nt

ra
ct

 
se

cu
re

d 
by

 S
tr

ee
t l

ig
ht

in
g 

in
 e

ar
ly

 2
00

4.
 (

29
/3

)

09
/0

9/
20

03
J 

B
ur

to
n

07
 

5
E

nc
ou

ra
ge

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
&

 u
se

 o
f e

ne
rg

y 
an

d 
re

so
ur

ce
 e

ffi
ci

en
t c

om
pu

te
r 

eq
ui

pm
en

t, 
su

ch
 a

s 
fla

t s
cr

ee
ns

 a
nd

 
do

ub
le

 s
id

in
g 

pr
in

te
rs

 J
 F

is
he

r
S

 T
hr

av
es

01
/0

3/
20

04
In

fo
 s

he
et

 o
n 

fla
t s

cr
ee

ns
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

an
d 

in
 u

se
 b

y 
IT

. I
T

 
E

qu
ip

m
en

t P
ur

ch
as

in
g 

P
ro

ce
du

re
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 fi
na

lis
ed

. 
IT

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 fo

r 
sp

ec
 o

f I
T

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t n

ow
 c

le
ar

. (
27

/1
)

15
/0

2/
20

04

07
 

6
R

un
 s

ch
em

e 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

w
at

er
 u

se
 in

 
of

fic
e 

to
ile

ts
   

T
 M

ar
sh

O
iC

s/
st

ud
en

t 
pl

ac
em

en
t

01
/0

9/
20

03
R

un
 b

y 
E

S
U

 s
tu

de
nt

 p
la

ce
m

en
t L

iz
 B

is
ho

p 
in

 M
ay

 &
 J

un
e 

03
. 

R
es

ul
ts

 p
ro

m
is

in
g 

th
ou

gh
 n

ot
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

fo
r 

al
l b

ui
ld

in
gs

.
09

/0
6/

20
03

P
ro

je
ct

 r
ep

or
t-

 E
S

U

08
 

1
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 S
ta

ff 
T

ra
ve

l s
ur

ve
y 

an
d 

an
al

ys
e 

re
su

lts
 

J 
C

ol
ye

r
A

 B
ar

to
n

01
/0

3/
20

04
S

ur
ve

y 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 to
 a

ll 
st

af
f i

n 
m

id
 O

ct
ob

er
: g

oo
d 

re
sp

on
se

 
ra

te
 o

f 4
8%

.  
H

ea
dl

in
e 

da
ta

 a
na

ly
si

s 
pr

od
uc

ed
 m

id
 M

ar
ch

  &
 

w
ill

 b
e 

ci
rc

ul
at

ed
 in

 G
E

M
ge

n 
bu

lle
tin

. F
ul

l r
es

ul
ts

 b
y 

en
d 

of
 

A
pr

il 
- 

de
la

ye
d 

 b
y 

of
fic

e 
m

ov
e 

an
d 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f S

ta
ff 

O
pi

ni
on

 
S

ur
ve

y.
 1

/6
/0

4)

29
/0

3/
20

04
G

E
M

ge
n 

bu
lle

tin
 

(M
ar

ch
 0

4)

R
ep

or
t c

o-
or

di
na

te
d 

by
 th

e 
E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l S
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 U

ni
t, 

ex
t 1

93
0/

33
63

, o
n 

be
ha

lf 
of

 th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
G

E
M

 g
ro

up
.

02
 J

un
e 

20
04

P
ag

e 
3 

of
 4

17



O
T

 
T

ar
ge

t t
ex

t
L

ea
d 

M
an

ag
er

L
ea

d 
O

ff
ic

er
D

u
e 

da
te

P
ro

gr
es

s
D

on
e?

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

F
ile

 r
ef

08
 

5
E

va
lu

at
e 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

 o
f 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l's

 fl
ex

ib
le

 w
or

ki
ng

 p
ilo

t i
n 

R
ev

s 
&

 B
en

ef
its

J 
S

al
t

S
 G

rif
fit

h
01

/0
3/

20
04

P
ilo

t d
el

ay
ed

.

08
 

8
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 d
es

kt
op

 s
tu

dy
 o

f p
ot

en
tia

l 
fo

r 
st

ag
ge

re
d 

op
en

in
g 

of
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

ts
.  

 G
 D

un
hi

ll
R

 B
al

l
01

/0
8/

20
03

S
tu

dy
 s

en
t t

o 
B

oa
rd

 m
ee

tin
g.

  P
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 s
ta

gg
er

ed
 o

pe
ni

ng
 

cl
ea

r 
so

  p
ur

ch
as

e 
of

 T
ra

pe
ze

 s
ch

ed
ul

in
g 

so
ftw

ar
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

.
24

/0
6/

20
03

09
 

1
 D

ev
el

op
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

on
 th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l s

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 

bu
ild

in
gs

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 

 C
 B

irk
s

J 
B

ur
to

n
01

/0
5/

20
03

D
es

ig
n 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

w
 r

ev
is

ed
, p

ub
lic

is
ed

 (
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

ta
ff 

m
ee

tin
g 

13
/6

) 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 a
nd

 p
la

ce
d 

on
 P

ro
pe

rt
y'

s 
 

'M
as

te
r 

do
cs

' f
ol

de
r.

 (
29

/3
)

03
/0

6/
20

03

09
 

2
O

ve
rh

au
l A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n 

an
d

fu
rt

he
r 

in
te

gr
at

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t a
nd

 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

w
ith

in
 it

 

 C
 B

irk
s

A
 B

al
l

01
/0

7/
20

03
A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n 

no
w

 p
as

se
d 

by
 C

X
M

T
 &

 C
ab

in
et

. 
S

co
re

d 
G

oo
d 

- 
to

p 
ra

tin
g.

02
/0

7/
20

03
A

M
P

 J
ul

y 
20

03

10
 

1
F

ur
th

er
 d

ev
el

op
 u

se
 o

f t
he

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 A
pp

ra
is

al
 

to
ol

, w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
  

 T
 M

ar
sh

R
 W

oo
d

01
/0

3/
20

04
M

ee
tin

g 
to

 d
is

cu
ss

 o
pt

io
ns

 to
ok

 p
la

ce
 w

ith
 F

or
um

 fo
r 

th
e 

F
ut

ur
e 

an
d 

J 
W

at
ki

ns
 in

 J
an

 0
4.

10
 

4
E

st
ab

lis
h 

ex
te

nt
 o

f e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l d
at

a
cu

rr
en

tly
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 c

en
tr

al
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 

T
 M

ar
sh

01
/0

3/
20

04
H

P
 M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

re
qu

es
t  

in
 A

pr
il.

 W
rit

te
n 

re
sp

on
se

 s
ca

nt
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

al
 fo

llo
w

 u
p 

sh
ow

ed
 d

at
a 

se
t 

cu
rr

en
tly

 p
oo

r.
 N

ow
 r

ev
is

ed
 ta

rg
et

 2
.7

 in
 0

4/
05

 G
E

M
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

(2
7/

3)

31
/0

5/
20

04

11
 

1
S

co
pe

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

f e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
m

an
ag

em
en

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
on

 C
ou

nc
il 

ow
ne

d 
la

nd
 

B
 B

lo
xs

om
e

G
 P

er
ro

tt/
J 

B
yr

ne
01

/0
3/

20
04

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 p

ro
ce

ed
 in

 ta
nd

em
 w

ith
 G

IS
 h

ab
ita

t m
ap

pi
ng

 a
nd

 w
ill

 
co

ve
r 

al
l C

ou
nc

il 
si

te
s 

di
gi

tis
ed

 o
nt

o 
G

IS
   

(2
7/

1)

11
 

2
D

ev
el

op
 a

 m
an

ag
em

en
t p

la
n 

ov
er

vi
ew

fo
r 

P
ar

ks
 a

nd
 C

ou
nt

ry
si

de
 la

nd
   

 T
 F

ea
th

er
st

on
e

S
 W

en
cz

ek
01

/0
6/

20
03

N
ow

 c
om

pl
et

e 
an

d 
he

ld
 b

y 
P

ar
ks

 &
 C

ou
nt

ry
si

de
 S

er
vi

ce
 (

7/
10

)
30

/0
9/

20
03

C
8-

pc
-f

so
1

R
ep

or
t c

o-
or

di
na

te
d 

by
 th

e 
E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l S
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 U

ni
t, 

ex
t 1

93
0/

33
63

, o
n 

be
ha

lf 
of

 th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
G

E
M

 g
ro

up
.

02
 J

un
e 

20
04

P
ag

e 
4 

of
 4

18



A
pp

en
di

x 
3:

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
G

EM
 (G

oo
d 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l M
an

ag
em

en
t) 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

20
04

/5
 

 Th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
as

 d
ra

w
n 

up
 in

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

w
ith

 re
le

va
nt

 m
an

ag
er

s,
 o

ffi
ce

rs
, a

nd
 th

e 
G

E
M

 g
ro

up
. I

t w
as

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
 (C

X
M

T)
 o

n 
25

th
 M

ay
 2

00
4 

an
d 

w
ill

 n
ow

 b
e 

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 th

e 
C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r f
or

 th
e 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t f

or
 a

pp
ro

va
l. 

   
P

ro
gr

es
s 

on
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

s 
w

ill 
be

 tr
ac

ke
d 

bi
m

on
th

ly
 b

y 
th

e 
co

rp
or

at
e 

G
E

M
 g

ro
up

. T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
fe

d 
in

to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
m

on
ito

rin
g.

 E
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

w
ill 

be
 n

ee
de

d.
 

To
 k

ee
p 

th
e 

si
ze

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
m

an
ag

ea
bl

e,
 n

ot
 e

ve
ry

 in
iti

at
iv

e 
th

at
 c

on
tri

bu
te

s 
to

 th
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 a
s 

a 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ta

rg
et

. 
H

ow
ev

er
 m

id
 y

ea
r a

nd
 fu

ll 
ye

ar
 re

po
rts

 to
 th

e 
C

ab
in

et
 m

em
be

r a
nd

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t S

cr
ut

in
y 

in
cl

ud
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 o

th
er

 p
la

ns
 o

r i
ni

tia
tiv

es
 

th
at

 fu
rth

er
 th

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

, s
o 

pl
ea

se
 k

ee
p 

th
e 

E
S

U
 a

nd
 y

ou
r D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
G

E
M

 L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r i
nf

or
m

ed
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
. 

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

.…
…

…
…

 

G
ui

de
 to

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

ta
bl

e 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 (i
n 

bo
ld

)  
B

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
m

aj
or

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

s,
 fo

cu
se

d 
on

 th
os

e 
ov

er
 w

hi
ch

 w
e 

ha
ve

 d
ire

ct
 c

on
tro

l 
Ta

rg
et

s 
  

 
S

pe
ci

fic
, S

M
A

R
T,

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t o
f o

bj
ec

tiv
e 

Le
ad

 M
an

ag
er

   
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 fo

r e
ns

ur
in

g 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r h
as

 th
e 

tim
e 

an
d 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
ta

sk
 o

n 
tim

e 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r  
 

In
di

vi
du

al
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r c
om

pl
et

in
g 

th
e 

ta
rg

et
 

S
ta

rt 
da

te
   

 
D

at
e 

fro
m

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
G

E
M

 g
ro

up
 w

ill 
m

on
ito

r p
ro

gr
es

s 
on

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
 

E
nd

 d
at

e 
  

 
D

at
e 

w
he

n 
ta

rg
et

 is
 d

ue
 fo

r c
om

pl
et

io
n 

Le
ad

 d
ire

ct
or

at
e 

 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
ta

ki
ng

 th
e 

in
iti

al
 a

ct
io

n 
P

ar
tic

ip
at

in
g 

di
rs

  
D

ire
ct

or
at

es
 w

ho
 w

ill 
be

 a
ffe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 m
us

t a
ct

 in
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
e 

in
iti

at
iv

e 
fo

r t
he

 ta
rg

et
 to

 s
uc

ce
ed

 
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

&
 T

ar
ge

ts
 

Le
ad

 M
an

ag
er

 &
 

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r 

St
ar

t d
at

e 
(m

on
th

) 
En

d 
da

te
 

(m
on

th
) 

Le
ad

 D
ir 

Pa
rt

ic
ip

a
tin

g 
D

irs
 

 1
 R

ed
uc

e 
w

as
te

 g
en

er
at

ed
 b

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
se

rv
ic

es
 b

y 
1%

1  a
nd

 in
cr

ea
se

 le
ve

ls
 o

f r
ec

yc
lin

g 
 a

nd
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 re
cy

cl
ed

 
m

at
er

ia
l (

W
M

) 
1.

1.
 P

ub
lic

is
e 

an
d 

ex
pa

nd
 o

ffi
ce

 re
cy

cl
in

g 
sc

he
m

e 
to

 
co

ve
r 9

0%
 o

f m
aj

or
2  C

ou
nc

il 
si

te
s.

   
   

W
as

te
 M

an
ag

er
 

R
ec

yc
lin

g 
O

ffi
ce

r 
17

69
 

 
 

E 
 

A
ll 

1.
2 

 M
ap

 w
as

te
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 w

ith
in

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 th
en

 fu
rth

er
 d

ev
el

op
 &

 p
ub

lic
is

e 
th

em
   

G
 C

oo
k 

G
 M

or
ris

 3
73

20
0 

1/
04

 
7/

04
 

S
C

H
 

- 

1.
3 

 E
xt

en
d 

C
ou

nc
il 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 re
 u

se
 o

f r
ec

yc
le

d 
pa

pe
r t

o 
H

JS
 p

rin
tin

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
  

C
 B

irk
s 

W
 H

an
co

ck
 0

98
9 

3/
04

 
6/

04
 

E
 

- 

1.
4 

S
co

pe
 fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 o
f e

xt
en

di
ng

 u
se

 o
f o

n-
sc

re
en

 
A

 B
lu

nd
el

l 
10

/0
4 

 3
/0

5 
 P

&
C

 
A

ll 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1  B

as
el

in
e 

fig
ur

e 
of

 3
5 

to
nn

es
 p

er
 w

ee
k 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 c
ap

ac
ity

 o
f s

ul
ob

in
s 

an
d 

ba
gs

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 fr

om
 C

ou
nc

il 
si

te
s 

in
 0

3/
04

. 
2  O

ve
r 2

0 
st

af
f 

19



au
th

or
is

at
io

n,
 th

us
 re

du
ci

ng
 n

ee
d 

fo
r p

ap
er

 fo
rm

s 
 

E
 P

aw
le

y 
07

71
 

1.
5 

 P
ilo

t n
et

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ho

to
co

pi
er

s 
at

 B
ro

ck
in

gt
on

 a
nd

 
P

lo
ug

h 
La

ne
 

P
 B

ai
le

y 
M

 T
itt

le
 0

59
7 

02
/0

4 
07

/0
4 

C
S

S
 

- 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2 
Im

pr
ov

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

by
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s,

 s
up

pl
ie

rs
 a

nd
 c

on
tr

ac
to

rs
 (C

P)
 

2.
1 

 U
nd

er
ta

ke
 s

ur
ve

y 
of

 m
aj

or
 s

up
pl

ie
rs

, t
he

n 
pr

ov
id

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 re
le

va
nt

 c
on

tra
ct

or
s 

on
 C

ou
nc

il 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

   

M
 R

os
en

th
al

 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t O

ffi
ce

r/ 
C

on
tra

ct
s 

P
an

el
 

2/
04

 
9/

04
 

C
S

S
 

A
ll 

2.
2 

 E
ns

ur
e 

re
vi

si
on

 o
f P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 s

et
s 

cl
ea

r  
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l s

ta
nd

ar
ds

. 
M

 R
os

en
th

al
 

J 
E

ad
es

/ C
on

tra
ct

s 
P

an
el

 

4/
04

 
7/

04
 

P
&

C
 

A
ll 

2.
3 

 W
or

k 
w

ith
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 J
ar

vi
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
( H

JS
) a

nd
 

O
w

en
 W

ill
ia

m
s 

(O
W

) t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

te
nd

er
 s

pe
cs

, K
ey

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 a
nd

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

gi
m

es
 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

  

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
an

ag
er

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
& 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g 
M

an
ag

er
/H

JS
/O

W
 

3/
04

 
6/

04
 

E
 

- 

2.
4 

S
ec

ur
e 

H
JS

 a
nd

 O
W

 c
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
to

 IS
O

 1
40

01
, a

s 
 

se
t o

ut
 in

 th
e 

S
er

vi
ce

 D
el

iv
er

y 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
A

s 
2.

3 
9/

03
 

5/
04

(H
JS

) 
6/

05
 (O

W
) 

E 
- 

2.
5 

S
ec

ur
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
H

JS
/O

W
 s

up
pl

y 
ch

ai
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

w
ith

 re
ga

rd
 to

 e
nv

 m
an

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

A
s 

2.
3 

4/
04

 
10

/0
4 

E
 

- 

2.
6 

 W
or

k 
w

ith
 o

ur
 s

up
pl

ie
rs

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 W

M
S

, t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 p
ro

du
ct

s 
m

ee
tin

g 
C

ou
nc

il 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 in
cr

ea
se

 
pu

rc
ha

si
ng

 o
f t

he
m

 

C
on

tra
ct

s 
P

an
el

/W
M

S
/E

S
U

 
6/

04
 

 1
/0

5 
 P

&
C

 
A

ll 

2.
7 

 E
va

lu
at

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l p

ol
ic

ie
s 

of
 c

en
tra

l 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 to

 fe
ed

 in
to

 
H

P
 R

ev
ie

w
 

H
P

E
AG

  
G

 P
er

ro
tt/

M
 B

ur
to

n 
5/

04
 

 9
/0

4 
E

 
- 

2.
8 

 F
ur

th
er

 d
ev

el
op

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
A

pp
ra

is
al

 to
ol

, w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 H
P

 re
vi

ew
 

T 
M

ar
sh

 
M

 B
ur

to
n 

4/
04

 
 1

2/
04

 
E

 
A

ll 

2.
9 

 E
st

ab
lis

h 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

lin
ks

 b
et

w
ee

n 
pa

rtn
er

 E
M

 
sy

st
em

s 
to

 a
gr

ee
d 

st
an

da
rd

s 
A

s 
2.

3 
 

3/
04

 
6/

04
 

E
 

H
JS

/O
W

 

2.
10

 R
ev

ie
w

 w
in

te
r s

er
vi

ce
 p

la
n 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
fo

ot
w

ay
s 

an
d 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
ro

ut
es

, s
al

t 
st

or
ag

e 
an

d 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

( s
ee

 2
.3

) 

 S
 O

at
es

 
T 

D
av

ie
s 

17
76

 
2/

04
 

 9
/0

4 
 E

 
H

JS
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

20



 3
 P

ro
m

ot
e 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l i

ni
tia

tiv
es

 a
nd

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
of

 C
ou

nc
il 

st
af

f o
f t

he
ir 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

 a
nd

 ro
le

 in
 G

EM
   

(T
A

)  
 

3.
1 

  R
un

 C
R

IS
 re

po
rt 

on
 G

E
M

 re
la

te
d 

tra
in

in
g 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
S

R
D

 a
nd

 a
dd

re
ss

 
ne

ed
s.

   

A
 A

ttf
ie

ld
 

B
 W

ill
so

n 
35

03
 

6/
04

 
9/

04
 

C
E

 
- 

3.
2 

  R
ep

or
t t

o 
C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r f
or

 th
e 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l S
cr

ut
in

y 
on

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 
G

E
M

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 &

 ta
rg

et
s 

in
 0

3/
04

  

S
 G

en
t 

T 
M

ar
sh

 
4/

04
 

6/
04

 
E

 
A

ll 

3.
3 

  I
m

pr
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 a

nd
 u

se
r f

rie
nd

lin
es

s 
of

   
   

   
   

G
E

M
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 th
e 

in
tra

ne
t a

nd
 w

eb
 s

ite
  

T 
M

ar
sh

 
S

 L
lo

yd
 

3/
04

 
6/

04
 

 E
 

 - 

3.
4 

 T
ra

in
 in

-h
ou

se
 C

E
E

Q
U

A
L 

as
se

ss
or

 a
nd

 p
ut

 fo
rw

ar
d 

m
aj

or
 e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
ca

pi
ta

l p
ro

je
ct

 fo
r a

w
ar

d.
 

M
 J

ac
ks

on
 

S
 B

ar
to

n 
07

84
 

3/
04

 
12

/0
4 

  E
 

 - 

3.
5 

 E
nc

ou
ra

ge
 C

ou
nc

il 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

to
 c

on
si

de
r ‘

gr
ee

n’
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 fo
r t

he
ir 

ho
m

es
 a

nd
 g

ar
de

ns
 th

ro
ug

h 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 li
ke

 'P
la

n 
it 

G
re

en
' i

n 
Le

om
in

st
er

. 

G
 C

oo
k 

L 
Fe

rg
us

on
 0

15
68

 
61

47
72

 

4/
04

 
3/

05
 

 S
C

H
 

 - 

3.
6 

 A
rr

an
ge

 s
em

in
ar

s 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
ss

ue
s 

an
d 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 fo

r s
ta

ff 
  

V
ar

io
us

 v
ia

 C
P

D
 

4/
04

 
3/

05
 

 
A

ll 

3.
7 

 In
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f E
co

-s
ch

oo
ls

 w
ith

 a
w

ar
ds

 
fro

m
 2

5%
 to

 3
5%

 
M

 B
ur

to
n 

L 
A

rn
ol

d 
4/

04
 

3/
05

 
E

  
E

d 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 4
 A

ch
ie

ve
 a

  1
%

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 e
ne

rg
y 

us
e 

in
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l c
ou

nc
il 

pr
op

er
ty

3   a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 e
ne

rg
y 

fr
om

 
re

ne
w

ab
le

 s
ou

rc
es

; (
EC

W
) 

 
4.

1 
 A

ch
ie

ve
 a

 1
%

 d
ec

re
as

e 
in

 e
ne

rg
y 

us
e 

(B
V

P
I 1

80
a:

 
pe

r m
et

er
 s

qu
ar

ed
 a

nd
 w

ea
th

er
 c

or
re

ct
ed

) f
ro

m
 

20
02

/3
 b

as
el

in
e 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll 
op

er
at

io
na

l p
ro

pe
rti

es
. 

J 
B

ur
to

n 
C

 E
ld

rid
ge

 
4/

04
 

3/
05

 
E

 
A

ll 

4.
2 

 C
o-

or
di

na
te

 th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
S

tra
te

gy
 fo

r H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
. 

T 
M

ar
sh

 
R

 W
oo

d 
10

/0
3 

9/
04

 
E

 
- 

4.
3 

 W
or

k 
w

ith
 W

M
S

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 th

e 
su

pp
ly

 o
f  

10
0%

 
re

ne
w

ab
le

s 
vi

a 
th

e 
en

er
gy

 s
up

pl
y 

ag
re

em
en

t 
 C

 B
irk

s 
J 

B
ur

to
n 

9/
04

 
1/

05
  

 E
 

- 

4.
4 

 U
se

 S
ta

rk
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

w
or

st
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
bu

ild
in

gs
; 

ex
pl

or
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 fu

nd
in

g 
op

tio
ns

 
to

 c
ar

ry
 th

es
e 

ou
t  

  

J 
B

ur
to

n 
C

 E
ld

rid
ge

 
04

/0
4 

03
/0

5 
E

 
A

ll 

4.
5 

 C
ol

le
ct

 a
nd

 e
nt

er
 w

at
er

 d
at

a 
in

to
 S

ta
rk

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
J 

B
ur

to
n 

 0
4/

04
 

 0
3/

05
 

E
 

A
ll 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3  C

ur
re

nt
 fo

cu
s 

on
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t e
ne

rg
y 

us
er

s:
 n

ot
 a

ll 
sm

al
l o

r i
nf

re
qu

en
tly

 u
se

d 
si

te
s 

ar
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 

21



m
ap

pi
ng

 o
f w

at
er

 u
se

 p
er

 h
ea

d 
or

 p
er

 s
qu

ar
e 

m
et

re
.  

C
 E

ld
rid

ge
 

4.
6 

 R
ol

l o
ut

 e
ne

rg
y 

st
ar

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
cr

os
s 

C
ou

nc
il 

IT
 

ha
rd

w
ar

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
s 

J 
H

ol
m

es
 

 
4/

04
 

3/
05

 
P

C
 

A
ll 

4.
7 

 In
ve

st
ig

at
e 

fe
as

ib
ilit

y 
of

 g
en

er
at

in
g 

el
ec

tri
ci

ty
 fr

om
 

ga
s 

fro
m

 a
t S

tre
tto

n 
Su

gw
as

 c
lo

se
d 

la
nd

fil
l s

ite
. 

A
 T

ec
to

r 
B

 C
ha

rtr
es

 0
54

2 
3/

04
 

9/
04

 
E

 
- 

  
 

 
 

 
 

5 
 R

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
 o

f C
ou

nc
il 

tr
an

sp
or

t u
se

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

St
af

f T
ra

ve
l P

la
n 

an
d 

ot
he

r i
ni

tia
tiv

es
  

(T
U

) 
5.

1 
 D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 a

do
pt

 S
ta

ff 
Tr

av
el

 P
la

n 
  

R
 B

al
l 

A
 B

ar
to

n 
30

07
 

5/
03

 
6/

04
 

E
 

A
ll 

5.
2 

 1
%

 d
ec

re
as

e 
in

 s
ta

ff 
bu

si
ne

ss
 m

ile
ag

e 
pe

r h
ea

d 
cl

ai
m

ed
 (B

V
P

I G
ol

de
n 

Th
re

ad
s/

 R
es

ou
rc

es
)  

 
G

 D
un

hi
ll 

G
E

M
 T

ea
m

 
4/

03
 

3/
05

 
E

 
A

ll 

5.
3 

 In
cr

ea
se

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 o
n 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
t /

 c
yc

lin
g 

cl
ai

m
ed

 b
y 

st
af

f b
y 

5%
 p

er
 h

ea
d 

   
   

 (B
V

P
I G

ol
de

n 
Th

re
ad

s/
 R

es
ou

rc
es

)  
 

G
 D

un
hi

ll 
G

E
M

 T
ea

m
 

4/
03

 
3/

05
 

E
 

A
ll 

5.
4 

 U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

 fl
ex

ib
le

 w
or

ki
ng

 p
ilo

t i
n 

R
ev

s 
&

 B
en

ef
its

 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

te
 th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
 

J 
S

al
t 

S
 G

rif
fit

h 
03

96
 

9/
04

 
 3

/0
5 

C
T 

- 

5.
5 

 R
ev

ie
w

 s
ta

ff 
ca

r p
ar

ki
ng

, a
s 

ag
re

ed
 in

 th
e 

co
un

ty
 

w
id

e 
ca

r p
ar

ki
ng

 s
tra

te
gy

   
 

S
 O

at
es

 
  

1/
04

 
12

/0
4 

E
 

A
ll 

5.
6 

 R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

to
ta

l n
um

be
r o

f v
eh

ic
le

s 
de

pl
oy

ed
 a

t t
w

o 
hi

gh
 s

ch
oo

ls
 b

y 
10

%
, w

ith
 e

ffe
ct

 fr
om

 th
e 

st
ar

t o
f t

he
 

ne
w

 s
ch

oo
l y

ea
r i

n 
S

ep
t 0

4.
 

G
 S

al
m

on
 

A
 B

la
ck

m
an

 0
92

7 
 

4/
04

 
10

/0
4 

E
d 

 - 

 
 

 
 

 
 

6 
 R

ed
uc

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l r

is
ks

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

pr
op

er
ty

 p
or

tfo
lio

 a
nd

 te
na

nt
 m

an
ag

em
en

t (
PM

) 
6.

1 
 D

ev
el

op
 a

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
ss

ue
s 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 in

du
st

ria
l e

st
at

es
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
le

tti
ng

s.
 

A
 H

ex
t  

 
A

 T
er

ry
 1

52
6 

11
/0

3 
6/

04
 

 E
 

 - 

6.
2 

 F
in

al
is

e 
le

as
es

 a
nd

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 w

ith
 

H
JS

 a
nd

 F
O

C
SA

 fo
r a

ll 
de

po
ts

   
   

 
 S

 G
en

t/M
 W

ill
ia

m
s 

3/
04

 
6/

04
 

 E
 

 - 

6.
3 

 Im
pl

em
en

t a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
fo

r  
th

e 
3 

cl
os

ed
 w

as
te

 
di

sp
os

al
 s

ite
s 

fo
r w

hi
ch

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

cu
rr

en
tly

 
kn

ow
n 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l l
ia

bi
lit

y 
w

ith
 re

ga
rd

 to
 

co
nt

am
in

at
ed

 la
nd

   

A
 T

ec
to

r 
B

 C
ha

rtr
es

 0
54

2 
4/

04
 

3/
05

 
E

nv
 

- 

6.
4 

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
th

er
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 c
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 C

ou
nc

il 
ow

ne
d 

si
te

s 
ov

er
 5

 y
ea

r r
ol

lin
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

in
 

A
 T

ec
to

r 
12

/0
2 

7/
06

 
E

nv
 

P
ot

en
tia

lly
 

A
ll 

22



ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
ad

op
te

d 
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

S
tra

te
gy

  
B

 C
ha

rtr
es

 0
54

2 
6.

5 
 R

ev
ie

w
 s

al
t s

to
ra

ge
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 in
 a

ll 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 a

nd
 

se
ek

 fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r s

to
ra

ge
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
.  

S
 O

at
es

 
C

 B
irk

s 
1/

04
 

10
/0

4 
E

 
H

JS
 

6.
6 

 D
ev

el
op

 p
la

n 
fo

r n
ew

 d
ep

ot
 a

t B
ro

m
ya

rd
 w

ith
 

im
pr

ov
ed

 s
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
 fo

r l
or

ry
 w

as
hi

ng
, s

to
ra

ge
 

et
c 

   
   

   
   

   
  

S
 O

at
es

/C
 B

irk
s 

 
12

/0
3 

12
/0

4 
E

 
H

JS
 

6.
7 

  S
ub

m
it 

ca
pi

ta
l b

id
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

dr
ai

na
ge

 a
t B

ro
ad

 S
t 

C
ar

 p
ar

k,
 L

eo
m

in
st

er
   

   
C

 B
irk

s 
A

 T
er

ry
 1

52
6 

3/
04

 
5/

04
 

E
 

- 

6.
8 

 S
ub

m
it 

ca
pi

ta
l b

id
 to

 m
em

be
rs

 to
 re

pl
ac

e 
cr

em
at

or
iu

m
  

A
 T

ec
to

r 
D

 R
av

en
sc

ro
ft 

19
96

 
1/

04
 

5/
04

 
E

 
 - 

6.
9 

 C
on

si
de

r e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

s 
w

he
n 

co
ns

ol
id

at
in

g 
de

pl
oy

m
en

t o
f s

ta
ff 

&
 li

nk
 to

 a
cq

ui
si

tio
ns

/d
is

po
sa

l 
po

lic
y.

 

C
 B

irk
s 

M
an

ag
er

s 
1/

04
 

3/
05

 
E

 
 - 

 
 

 
 

 
 

7.
   

 B
ui

ld
 o

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
w

or
k 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 a

nd
 e

nh
an

ce
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
 o

n 
C

ou
nc

il 
ow

ne
d 

la
nd

. (
B

) 
7.

1 
 D

ig
iti

se
 th

e 
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s 
of

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ow
ns

 o
r h

as
 a

n 
in

te
re

st
 in

 (e
xc

lu
di

ng
 

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
la

nd
) 

A
 B

al
l 

J 
W

oo
d 

15
34

 
1/

04
 

6/
04

 
 

 

7.
2 

 S
co

pe
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 o
f e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l m

an
ag

em
en

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
on

 C
ou

nc
il 

ow
ne

d 
la

nd
  

T 
M

ar
sh

 
R

 W
oo

d 
3/

04
 

10
/0

4 
E

 
P

&
C

 

7.
3 

 E
nl

ar
ge

 d
at

ab
as

e 
of

 fl
or

a 
an

d 
fa

un
a 

on
 c

om
m

on
s 

  
G

 T
ho

m
ps

on
 

T 
H

ul
m

e 
01

56
8 

79
83

26
 

11
/0

3 
8/

04
 

E
 

P
&

C
 

7.
4 

 O
bt

ai
n 

FS
C

 (F
or

es
t S

te
w

ar
ds

hi
p 

C
ou

nc
il)

 
ce

rti
fic

at
io

n 
fo

r C
ou

nc
il 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 a
nd

 c
ou

nt
ry

si
de

 
w

oo
dl

an
ds

.  

 F
or

es
try

 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 

G
 T

ho
m

ps
on

 

11
/0

3 
9/

04
 

  E
 

 P
&

C
 

7.
5 

R
ev

ie
w

 h
ed

ge
 c

ut
tin

g 
/n

es
tin

g 
bi

rd
 p

ro
to

co
l f

or
 

P
R

O
W

 a
nd

 H
ig

hw
ay

s 
an

d 
un

de
rta

ke
 a

ny
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

S
 O

at
es

 
R

 H
em

bl
ad

e/
S 

D
av

ie
s 

4/
04

 
6/

04
 

E
 

- 

7.
6 

 C
la

rif
y 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

fo
r R

oa
ds

id
e 

N
at

ur
e 

R
es

er
ve

s 
S

 O
at

es
 

H
N

T/
P

 J
ob

so
n 

19
97

 
5/

04
 

7/
04

 
E

 
- 

8.
   

 F
ur

th
er

 in
te

gr
at

e 
G

EM
 in

to
 c

or
po

ra
te

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

(C
PM

)  
8.

1 
 R

ev
ie

w
 C

ap
ita

l S
ch

em
e 

S
el

ec
tio

n 
P

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 

st
re

ng
th

en
 a

pp
ra

is
al

 o
f e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l i

ss
ue

s.
 

 A
 T

an
ne

r/ 
A

 B
al

l/ 
 S

 
C

am
er

on
/ M

 B
ur

to
n 

 5
/0

4 
 9

/0
4 

 C
T 

A
ll 

23



8.
2 

 C
om

pu
te

ris
e 

P
S

01
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l i
nc

id
en

ts
 a

nd
 n

ea
r m

is
se

s 
 

D
 J

oh
ns

on
 

J 
C

la
rk

e 
04

48
 

 1
/0

4 
 9

/0
4 

C
S

S
 

A
ll 

 8
.3

  I
nt

eg
ra

te
 G

E
M

 in
to

 R
is

k 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t r
ol

lo
ut

 
A

 S
m

ith
 

A
 R

ew
el

l 0
29

5 
 6

/0
4 

 2
/0

5 
 C

T 
 E

 

8.
4 

 D
ev

el
op

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l S
tra

te
gy

 fo
r t

he
 C

ou
nc

il,
 

dr
aw

in
g 

on
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 s
tra

te
gi

es
 

T 
M

ar
sh

 
R

 W
oo

d 
4/

04
 

6/
04

 
E

 
P

 &
C

 

8.
5 

 U
nd

er
ta

ke
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 a
pp

ra
is

al
 o

f t
he

 R
ev

is
ed

 
D

ep
os

it 
U

D
P

 
D

 N
ic

ho
ls

on
 

P
 R

us
se

ll 
01

66
 

1/
04

 
5/

04
 

E
 

- 

8.
6 

 E
st

ab
lis

h 
w

ay
 fo

rw
ar

d 
fo

r S
E

A
 (S

tra
te

gi
c 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l A
ss

es
sm

en
t D

ire
ct

iv
e)

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

, w
he

n 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t g
ui

da
nc

e 
re

le
as

ed
, s

ta
rti

ng
 w

ith
 re

po
rt 

to
 C

X
M

T 
 

C
X

M
T 

E
SU

   
 4

/0
4 

 8
/0

4 
E

 
A

ll 

8.
7 

 L
oo

k 
at

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 g
ap

s 
in

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
ba

se
lin

e 
da

ta
 n

ee
de

d 
fo

r S
E

A
 

C
 B

ot
w

rig
ht

 
P

 R
us

se
ll 

 6
/0

4 
 6

/0
5 

E
 

P
&

C
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

9 
   

R
ol

l o
ut

 s
co

pe
 o

f I
SO

 1
40

01
 c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

to
 c

ov
er

 a
ll 

C
ou

nc
il 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
by

 F
eb

 2
00

5.
 

9.
1 

 R
ev

ie
w

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l a

sp
ec

ts
 a

nd
 th

ei
r 

co
nt

ro
l a

t D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

le
ve

l 
 G

E
M

 L
ea

ds
/E

S
U

 
3/

04
 

6/
04

 
E

 
A

ll 

9.
2 

 W
as

te
 a

nd
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

jo
in

 IS
O

 1
40

01
 s

co
pe

 
A

 T
ec

to
r/S

 O
at

es
 

M
an

ag
er

s/
E

S
U

 
4/

04
 

7/
04

 
 

 

9.
3 

 R
em

ai
ni

ng
 C

ou
nc

il 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

jo
in

 IS
O

 
14

00
1 

sc
op

e 
 M

an
ag

er
s/

E
S

U
 

8/
04

 
2/

05
 

 
 

9.
4 

 C
lo

se
 o

ut
 8

0%
 o

f n
on

-c
on

fo
rm

an
ce

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

w
ith

in
 

2 
m

on
th

s 
(In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

an
d 

C
A

Fs
) 

T 
Fo

rd
 

G
EM

 
Au

di
to

rs
/M

an
ag

er
s 

4/
04

 
3/

05
 

C
T 

A
ll 

9.
5 

A
ch

ie
ve

 8
0%

 o
f G

E
M

 ta
rg

et
s 

by
 d

ue
 d

at
e.

 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 

Le
ad

 M
an

ag
er

s 
4/

04
 

3/
05

 
E

 
A

ll 
 

 
 

E
S

U
, 2

6/
5/

04
 

24



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 18TH JUNE, 2004 

 
Further information on this subject of this report is available from Mr. A. Tector, Head of Environmental 

Health & Trading Standards (01432) 261989 

 WASTE MANAGEMENT 

Report By: Director of Environment 
 
 

Wards Affected 

 Countywide 

Purpose 

 To provide an update on the current performance of the Waste Collection 
Contract, Integrated Waste Management Contract and to outline the implication 
of the Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire. 

 Background 

1. The report details the performance of the Council’s Integrated Waste 
Management service.  The report provides information on the Council’s 
recycling/composting performance and details the current position with regard to 
the Integrated Waste Management Contract.  Whilst the report is split into broad 
performance areas the collection and disposal contracts are interrelated and the 
performance of one area may be dependent on performance in another area.  
For example kerbside collection recycling is dependent on both the Collection 
contract and the ability of the Materials Recycling Facility (MRF) at Rotherwas to 
sort and complete the recycling process, the MRF is of course part of the Waste 
Disposal Contract.  In addition consultation on Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire’s Municipal Waste Management closed on the 7th May 2004 and 
there will an oral update on the public consultation at the Committee Meeting. 

2. In addition the Appendix to this report provides comparative data on the Council’s 
performance compared to other authorities across England. 

Integrated Waste Management 
3. Herefordshire Council’s kerbside collection and the Rotherwas MRF have 

effectively been running for 12 months and this report outlines the performance 
of that scheme and the Council’s overall performance in meeting its targets for 
recycling and composting. 

4. The Council has a number of statutory targets to meet with regard to waste 
management.  These targets have varying timescales attached to them, however 
the two most immediate targets relate to BVPI 82 (a) and (b) – the percentage of 
household waste recycled and composted.  Herefordshire Council’s target for 
recycling and composting for 2003/04 was 14% the Council actually achieved a 
level of 19.4% (some 5.4% in excess of target) the Council’s next 
recycling/composting target is for 2005/06 and is 21%.  A breakdown of the 
recycling performance is detailed in the graph below. 

AGENDA ITEM 7

25



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 18TH JUNE, 2004 

 
Further information on this subject of this report is available from Mr. A. Tector, Head of Environmental 

Health & Trading Standards (01432) 261989 

R e c yc lin g /C o m p o s tin g  P e rfo rm a n c e  - H e re fo rd s h ire  C o u n c il

0

5

1 0

1 5

2 0

2 5

2 0 0 1 /0 2 2 0 0 2 /0 3 2 0 0 3 /0 4 2 0 0 4 /0 5 2 0 0 5 /0 6
Y e a r

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 R

ec
yc

le
d/

C
om

po
st

ed

B V  8 2  a B V  8 2  b

T o ta l (B V 8 2 a  +  8 2 b ) G o ve rn m e n t T a rg e t

R e c

 

5. The Council’s recycling/composting performance is essentially constructed of a 
number of elements.  The Council’s kerbside collection of recyclables, recycling 
and composting through the Household Waste Sites and Bring Sites run by both 
the Council and Voluntary Agencies.  The relative performance of these schemes 
is detailed below. 

Source of Recyclate 

(2003-04) 

Percentage Tonneage 

Kerbside 3.90% 3416.49 

Household Waste Sites 3.98% 3483.92 

“Bring To” sites plus sundries 5.57% 4885.85 

Household Waste Sites (Composting) 5.95%  

Total 19.4%  

 

6. The Kerbside recycling is (as outlined above) delivered through the Waste 
Collection contract and the Waste Disposal Contract.  The Recycling and 
Composting undertaken through the Household Waste Sites is delivered through 
the Waste Disposal Contract.  The Bring Sites are largely managed in-house 
through the Council’s Waste Management. 

7. It is clear that unless there is further investment in the Council’s recycling and 
composting Herefordshire is unlikely to meet its 2005/06 target.  The current 
performance means that the Council if it continued as at present would fall some 

26



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 18TH JUNE, 2004 

 
Further information on this subject of this report is available from Mr. A. Tector, Head of Environmental 

Health & Trading Standards (01432) 261989 

1.55% short of the 2005/06 target.  Some investment has already been made in 
the expansion of kerbside collection beyond the current contract arrangements. 

8. As the chart above indicates the Council is confronted with difficult questions in 
improving its overall performance.  The greatest contribution to the 
recycling/composting figure is made by the Household Waste Sites with some 
9.93% of all the County’s waste being composted or recycled from the 
Household Waste Sites.  The “Bring To” Sites and other sundry collections 
deliver a further 5.57% of the County’s recycling.  The lowest contribution to the 
County’s figures comes through the kerbside collection.  However the current 
kerbside collection is only providing a service in the urban areas (or rural areas 
immediately adjacent to urban areas). 

9. It is evident from these figures that the Council needs to retain a balance in its 
methods of recycling.  However the biggest gains can probably be achieved from 
improved performance at the Household Waste Sites and by the extension of the 
kerbside recycling scheme across the whole of Herefordshire.   

10. The Council now supports a scheme of kerbside recycling collections in the south 
of the County.  This has been done by using an existing scheme operated by 
Enviroability in Ross-on-Wye to extend their current scheme through Ross and 
the surrounding area on a boxed collection basis.  It is expected that this 
particular scheme will collect some 1912 tonnes of recyclables, which will provide 
a figure of some 2.18% recycling.  The scheme is expected to deliver particularly 
high participation rates because of its popularity in the Ross area and because 
the scheme is more comprehensive than the Council’s own scheme because it 
operates a box collection and is capable of delivering higher tonneages.  The 
scheme is currently funded through two routes, firstly a recycling grant and 
secondly through “collection credits”. 

11. In reviewing the kerbside collection scheme the Council is in a position to 
facilitate changes as the Waste Collection Contract comes up for review in July 
2006.  The contractors need to consider the reprocurement of their fleet and this 
does provide an immediate opportunity to reconsider the current collection 
arrangements.  There appear to be a number of options available and these are 
detailed below outlining the pros and cons. 

Option Pros Cons 

Keep the scheme as it 
is now 

Minimal growth in 
contract cost. 

 

Unable to meet 
2005/06 recycling 
targets. 

Unequal service 
delivery across the 
County. 

No kerbside collection of 
glass 

27



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 18TH JUNE, 2004 

 
Further information on this subject of this report is available from Mr. A. Tector, Head of Environmental 

Health & Trading Standards (01432) 261989 

Option Pros Cons 

Extend current scheme 
across County 

Ability to meet 2005/06 
recycling targets 

Equal service delivery 
across the County. 

 

Potential for at least 
£500k increase in 
contract costs 

No kerbside collection 
of glass 

Kerbside collection 
across the County but 
on fortnightly basis. 

Residual waste 
collected fortnightly 
and Recyclables 
collected alternate 
weeks will lead to 
higher participation 
rates for recycling. 

Potentially lower costs 

Public approval of 
waste collection 
service may diminish. 

As above but with 
Wheelie bins 

Residual waste 
collected fortnightly 
and Recyclables 
collected alternate 
weeks will lead to 
higher participation 
rates for recycling. 

Potentially lower costs 

Public approval may 
not be as badly 
affected. 

Possible ability to 
restrict waste growth 
and encourage home 
composting. 

High Capital set up 
costs (In the order of 
£1 million) 

A weekly collection of 
2 boxes (paper, 
textiles & cans, glass 
plastics), and an 
alternate weekly 
collection of their 
compostable waste 
(wheelie bin) and 
residual waste 
(wheelie bin).  

A similar scheme in 
Daventry delivered 
44.3% recycling rate in 
2002/03. 

High Capital set up 
costs (in the order of 
£2 – £2.5 million) 

May not be necessary 
if proposed Autoclave 
delivers high rates of 
recycling. 

Likely to produce 
higher levels of waste. 

28



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 18TH JUNE, 2004 

 
Further information on this subject of this report is available from Mr. A. Tector, Head of Environmental 

Health & Trading Standards (01432) 261989 

 

12. The above options can be varied and combined in a number of cases.  It is clear 
that one of the best methods of improving recycling is by including compostable 
waste in any scheme.  In 2002/03, 30.2% of Daventry D.C.’s 44.3% total 
recycling rate was compostable waste.  As such a scheme would include garden 
waste there are real risks that Herefordshire would see its throughput of waste 
increase considerably.  It is noticeable that Daventry, which is only a Waste 
Collection Authority, collects 504 kg/head, compared with Herefordshire, which 
as a Waste Disposal and Collection Authority collected 459.5 kg/head for the 
year 2002/03. 

13. The Council is, along with its partners in Worcestershire setting high targets in 
the Municipal Waste Management Strategy for both recycling and recovery.  
These targets are challenging and will require the Councils to invest in expanding 
the current facilities to handle waste (through the Integrated Waste Management 
Contract) and by maximising the other schemes, such as kerbside collection and 
bring sites operating in the County.  These targets are detailed below. 

M a n a g e m e n t  o f  M u n ic ip a l  W a s t e  in  
2 0 0 2 /0 3

L a n d f i l le d
8 5 % R e c y c le d /

C o m p o s te d
1 5 %

P r o p o s e d  M a n a g e m e n t  o f  
M u n i c i p a l  W a s t e  i n  2 0 1 5 / 1 6

R e c o v e r e d
4 5 %

L a n d f i l l e d
2 2 %

R e c y c l e d / C
o m p o s t e d

3 3 %
 

Waste Management Contract 
14. The Waste Management Contract continues to be in a standstill arrangement, 

the next standstill period ends in July.  The two Council’s are continuing to 

29



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 18TH JUNE, 2004 

 
Further information on this subject of this report is available from Mr. A. Tector, Head of Environmental 

Health & Trading Standards (01432) 261989 

negotiate to ensure the contract can continue at a broadly similar price and within 
the current contract. 

15. The proposed levels of recycling and recovery will need to be considered 
carefully.  Should the proposal for an Autoclave process at Madley go ahead and 
become a facility in the Council’s contract with Mercia Waste Management 
through its operating company Severn Waste Services, and the process delivers 
recycling at the level the company claim, then the Council will exceed the 
recycling targets and the recovery targets will also be met.  Even if the Autoclave 
process is unable to deliver the levels of recycling predicted then providing the 
fibre is recovered it is likely that the Council will be able to achieve its landfill 
diversion targets and the recycling targets.  

16. As detailed above the Household Waste Sites are clearly crucial to meeting 
targets and provide a relatively cheap method of delivering high levels of 
recycling and composting.  Work done through the Joint Municipal Waste 
Management Forum have shown that in national terms the Household Waste 
Sites could deliver far higher levels of recycling and composting.  Work is already 
being undertaken to try and improve the performance of these sites. 

17. In the short-term the Council is confronted by a dilemma.  The Council essentially 
has two options it can: 

a. Ignore the 2005/06 recycling target and wait for its contractor Severn 
Waste Services to deliver facilities that will allow the Council to meet its 
targets after 2005/06, through a process such as an Autoclave.  Such an 
approach would require minimum investment in kerbside collection. 

b. It could expand the kerbside collection right across the County and meet 
the 2005/06 targets for recycling, although the costs attached to such an 
approach may be high. 

18. In weighing up the two options several issues need to be taken into account.  
The Council essentially has two sets of targets to meet; recycling and landfill 
diversion.  The second recycling target has to be met for 2005/06 and will require 
an increase in performance of some 1.6%.  This target is likely to met 
comfortably if, for example, the Council extended its kerbside collection to cover 
100% of properties in Herefordshire rather than the current 50%.  On current 
estimates the extension is likely to cost in the order of £500,000.  It is feasible 
that by pressing the current arrangements to operate more effectively the 1.6% 
could be achieved with some extra resource being concentrated around 
improving participation rates for the kerbside scheme.  There is a risk that this 
extra 1.6% could not be achieved and the target for 2005/06 would be missed.   

19. Whilst the recovery target for the Council is slightly longer-term, the first target 
date is 2010 when the Council has to have reduced the biodegradable waste to 
75% of that produced in 1995, by 2013 the waste should be reduced to 50% of 
the 1995 levels and by 2020 it should be reduced to 35% of the 1995 levels.  The 
current recycling and composting arrangements alone will not meet these levels 
and the County will require facilities such a an Autoclave, Incinerator or 
Mechanical Biological Treatment Plant to deliver these particular targets. 

30



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 18TH JUNE, 2004 

 
Further information on this subject of this report is available from Mr. A. Tector, Head of Environmental 

Health & Trading Standards (01432) 261989 

20. The Waste and Emissions Trading Act has introduced a Trading Scheme as a 
means to ensure compliance with the EC Landfill Directive that requires the UK 
to reduce the amount of biodegradable municipal waste it sends to landfill. 

21. The Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme targets are for biodegradable municipal 
waste and there will be severe financial penalties for failing to comply (£200 per 
tonne, approximately 4 times the current cost to landfill). 

22. Defra states that: Waste Collection Authorities will need to work very closely with 
waste disposal authorities to ensure that the allowance system works effectively 
and that the Landfill Directive targets are met. Waste collection authorities and 
waste disposal authorities will also need to work together to discuss the most 
effective diversion strategy for their area and plan the management infrastructure 
to achieve the necessary diversion. Provisions in the Waste and Emissions 
Trading Act require waste disposal and waste collection authorities (with some 
exceptions) to produce a Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy to ensure 
a partnership approach to local waste management planning. 

23. To date interim targets have not been set but to ensure targets are met it may be 
necessary for both Herefordshire and Worcestershire to set their own targets to 
ensure progress can be made towards the targets. 

Municipal Waste Management Strategy 
25. The Joint Municipal Waste Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire 

“Managing waste for a Brighter Future” has been subject to wide public 
consultation since the beginning of the year, the closing date for consultation 
being the 7th May 2004.  A report on the consultation process is to be considered 
by the Herefordshire and Worcestershire Joint Members Waste Forum on the 
27th May.  An update on the outcome of this meeting will be provided at the the 
Environment Scrutiny Committee Meeting. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the report be noted. 
  

 Background Papers 

• None identified. 

31



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 18TH JUNE, 2004 

 
Further information on this subject of this report is available from Mr. A. Tector, Head of Environmental 

Health & Trading Standards (01432) 261989 

APPENDIX 1 
 
 

  Cost of waste 
collection per 
household 
(BVPI 2002-
2003)       

  
75th Percentile 

Median 
Percentile 25th Percentile Average 

All 38.69 33.44 28.95 36.36 
London Borough 46.03 37.87 29.67 41.82 
Metropolitan 
Authority 31.41 28.53 24.05 34.37 
Unitary Authority 40.02 32.94 29.48 35.74 
District Authority 38.65 34.02 29.71 N/A 
County Councils N/A N/A N/A N/A 
          
Herefordshire 
2002/03 

33.4   Herefordshire 
2003/04 

36.22 

  Herefordshire 
2003/04 – Cost 
of kerbside 
recycling 
collection 
(including 
bonuses, and 
overheads). 

86.55 
(This does not 
include 
disposal 
costs) 

  
 
  Cost of waste 

disposal per 
tonne for 
municipal 
waste (BVPI 
2002-2003)       

  
75th Percentile 

Median 
Percentile 25th Percentile Average 

All 40.48 35.42 31.48 36.36 
London Borough 46.18 44.23 41.25 41.82 
Metropolitan 
Authority 38 32.92 29.07 34.37 
Unitary Authority 40.13 35.49 30.23 35.74 
District Authority N/A N/A N/A N/A 
County Councils 38.97 35.39 32.4 36.42 
          
Herefordshire 
2002/03 

55.12   Herefordshire 
2003/04 

 

 
 

32



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 18TH JUNE, 2004 

 
Further information on this subject of this report is available from Mr. A. Tector, Head of Environmental 

Health & Trading Standards (01432) 261989 

 
 
 
  Kg of 

household 
waste 
collected per 
head (BVPI 
2002-2003)       

  
75th Percentile 

Median 
Percentile 25th Percentile Average 

All 513 444 389 451.25 
London Borough 500 462.63 421.8 459.95 
Metropolitan 
Authority 517 466.51 438.84 476.64 
Unitary Authority 557.4 522.87 500 527.45 
District Authority 438 401.06 367 403.37 
County Councils 568 539 522.66 544.59 
          
Herefordshire 
2002/03 

459.5   Herefordshire 
2003/04 

496.56 

 
 
 
 
  
  Household 

waste - 
percentage 
recycled (BVPI 
2002-2003)       

  
Average 75th Percentile 

Median 
Percentile 25th Percentile 

All 10.79 13.34 10.31 7.98 
London Borough 9.56 13.4 9.4 6.51 
Metropolitan 
Authority 6.11 7.46 6.26 4.35 
Unitary Authority 10.51 11.87 10.2 8.51 
District Authority 11.46 14.05 10.62 8.1 
County Councils 12 13.65 12.1 9.9 
          
Herefordshire 10.3   Herefordshire 

2003/04 
13.6 

  

33



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 18TH JUNE, 2004 

 
Further information on this subject of this report is available from Mr. A. Tector, Head of Environmental 

Health & Trading Standards (01432) 261989 

  
  Household 

waste - 
percentage 
composted 
(BVPI 2002-
2003)       

  
Average 75th Percentile 

Median 
Percentile 25th Percentile 

All 2.95 4.9 1.6 0 
London Borough 1.64 2.77 0.35 0 
Metropolitan 
Authority 1.68 2.73 1.33 0 
Unitary Authority 4.44 5.98 3.787 2.42 
District Authority 2.02 2.23 0.2 0 
County Councils 6.51 8.2 6.18 5.06 
          
Herefordshire 
2002/03 

5.1   Herefordshire 
2003/04 

5.7 

  
  
  
 

34



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 18TH JUNE 2004
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Graham Dunhill on 01432 260041 
 

 CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2004/05 

Report By: DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT 
                                                                                  

 

Wards Affected 

 Countywide. 

Purpose 

1. To inform the Committee of the latest position with regard to the Environment Capital 
Programme for 2004/05. 

Considerations 

2. The Capital Programme for 2004/05 is set out in the attached Appendix 1 which 
gives details of the individual schemes.  At the end of the Appendix is listed a number 
of bids being considered for approval for funding from Prudential  on 17th June 2004.  
When the outcome of these bids is known the Capital Programme will be finalised. 

3. The programme has been largely based on the 2004/05 Local Transport Plan. 

4. The total amount available for the Capital Programme is therefore expected to be 
£12,643,720 plus any sum approved from the Prudential Borrowing. 

5. The largest element of funding comes from the S.C.E (R) or supported capital 
expenditure (Revenue) which has replaced the old Basic Credit Approval following 
the introduction of the Prudential Code. 

6. The Capital Programme for 2004/05 will inevitably change during the year as the 
sums allocated for individual schemes are reviewed and revised.   

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the report confirming the Environment Capital Programme be 
noted.  

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None identified. 

AGENDA ITEM 8

35



36



Environment General

Provisional 
Budget for 

2004/05

Scheme 2005/06 2006/07
 £ £ £

Non LTP:

Minor Highways Schemes - Improvements

Bye Street - Improvements

Completing the jigsaw cap Exp
Sec 106 Agree - Friar St 37,630 

LPSA improving road safety 7,036 
LPSA improving road safety 96,054 
Urban Bus Challenge - WyeSMoves 774,000 

Countywide

LTP - Traffic Calming 110,000 50,000 
LTP - Minor Safety Improvements 250,000 200,000 
LTP-Safety Cameras
LTP - Village Speed limit reductions 33,000 30,000 
LTP - Safer Routes to schools 300,000 300,000 
and 20mph Zones at schools
LTP - Vehicle activated Signs 20,000 20,000 
Monitoring 20,000 20,000 
Travel Awareness 35,000 25,000 
Green Travel Promotions 28,000 28,000 
School Travel Support 25,000 25,000 

Hereford Integrated Transport Strategy:

LTP - Bus Priority Schemes 45,000 50,000 
LTP - PTI - Bus
LTP - PTI - Rail 100,000 
LTP - Passenger Waiting Facilities 30,000 30,000 

LTP -Christmas  Park and Ride 20,000 20,000 

Park & Ride - Sites Analysis 22,000 

LTP - Cycle Network Development 70,000 80,000 
LTP - Pedestrian Crossing Improvements 5,000 5,000 
LTP - Pedestrian Route & Disabled Access Imps 35,000 25,000 

LTP - Rotherwas Integrated Access 15,000 50,000 

LTP - Travel Centre (STDP) 20,000 

LTP - WyeS Moves Contribution 5,000 

Rural Areas & Market Towns Int Trans Strat:

LTP - PTI - Rail 68,000 100,000 

LTP - Public Transport Information Access Points 35,000 50,000 

LTP - Passenger Waiting Facilities 40,000 40,000 
LTP - Network of Cycle Routes and Cycle Pkg 80,000 80,000 
LTP - Pedestrian and Disabled Access Imps 15,000 20,000 
LTP - Rural Footway Improvements 60,000 60,000 

Pembridge By-Pass 5,000 

LTP - Quiet Lanes

LTP - Monitoring

Major Minor Schemes:

LTP - Rotherwas Access Road 915,000 550,000 

Forecast of Requirement for 
future years

37



Environment General

Provisional 
Budget for 

2004/05

Scheme 2005/06 2006/07
 £ £ £

Forecast of Requirement for 
future years

LTP - Roman Road 3,100,000 933,000 

LTP - Rural Low floor Bus Project 500,000 

LTP - Staff costs to be allocated over LTP 301,000 301,000 

Capitalised Maintenance:
Capitalised Maintenance of Principal Roads 1,200,000 2,010,000 
Capitalised Maintenance of Non-Principal Roads 3,272,000 2,950,000 
Footways - Footways 550,000 390,000 
Capitalised Ass'ment & Strength of Bridges 500,000 500,000 
Other schemes 12,049,000 

Gross Expenditure 12,643,720 9,042,000 12,049,000 

Year End Creditors b/fwd

Year End Creditors c/fwd

Expenditure to be Financed 12,643,720 9,042,000 12,049,000 

Financed By: £ £ £
SCE (R ) (11,072,000) (9,042,000) (12,049,000)

Objective 2 MTSTI (97,000)

Objective 2 Rotherwas Integrated Access (15,000)

Objective 2 Rural Transport Startegy (62,000)

Objective 2 Rotherwas Access Road (490,000)

Objective 2 - SRTS (35,000)

LPSA (103,090)

Private Developers Bus Priority Scheme (15,000)

Private Developers Traffic Calming (40,000)

Section 106 Friar St (37,630)

Urban bus chall wyes moves grant (774,000)

(12,643,720) (9,139,000) (12,049,000)

Bids waiting for approval on the 17/6,to be funded by Prudential borrowing 
Crematorium Hereford 600,000           800,000           800,000           
Hereford Cemetery 100,000           
Leominster Closed Landfill Site 45,000             
Public Toilets Improvements 150,000           150,000           150,000           
Rotherwas Access Road 500,000           500,000           

38



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  18 JUNE 2004  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from David Keetch on (01432) 260227 
 
 

REVENUEBUDGETANDOUTTURNreport0.doc  

 ENVIRONMENT REVENUE BUDGET 2004/05 AND 
OUTURN 2003/04 

Report By: Director of Environment 
 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To inform members of the latest position with regard to the Environment 
Budget for 2004/05 following the formal approval of the Council’s budget.  

Considerations 

 Outturn 2003/04 

2. Although the outturn figures for 2003/04 are not yet finalised, an 
underspending of approximately £371,000 is expected to be brought forward.  
Decisions will be taken on the allocation of this sum between services when 
the carry forward is confirmed.   

Further brief comments on the 2003/04 outturn are as follows; -  

Environment 

(a) The anticipated out-turn for the Environment Programme area overall 
shows  an underspending of £851,000. However, as the 
underspending on the Waste PFI contract of £480,000 is transferred to 
balances, the carry-forward into 2004/05 is reduced to £371,000.  The 
Waste PFI underspending was partly because volumes were lower 
than expected (£180,000) and because £300,000 provided for the 
costs of the contract following re-negotiation was not needed. 

(b) Environment General, including highways, shows a net overspending 
of £97,000 after excluding the underspending on the Waste PFI.   The 
main variations are the increased income from new roads and street 
work fees (£78,000), and the increased cost of public rights of way 
(£21,000), street lighting (£23,000) and public conveniences 
(£61,000).  The road maintenance budgets were approximately 
£67,000 overspent. 

(c) Further underspendings have occurred in crematorium (£62,000) and 
cemeteries (£62,000), due largely to increased income, and street 
cleansing (£23,000). 

(d) Environment Regularity shows an underspending of £31,000.  

AGENDA ITEM 9

39



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  18 JUNE 2004  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from David Keetch on (01432) 260227 
 
 

REVENUEBUDGETANDOUTTURNreport0.doc  

Underspendings on most services were offset by spending on street 
trading.    When this budget was transferred from Economic 
Development, only the income budget was transferred. 

(e) Planning Services underspent by £437,000 largely owing to additional 
fee income (£206,000) and Building Control staff savings (£82,000).  In 
addition, a proportion of the Planning Development Grant for 2003/04 
will be carried forward into 2004/05 (£165,000). 

 A full report on the Council’s outturn position will go to Cabinet in July.  

 Budget 2004/05 

3. The Council approved a budget of £23,369,485 for the Environment 
Programme Area, including allocations of £1,154,000 for Central Support 
Services.  This total is increased by £314,250   by a transfer from the Property 
Programme Area following the reallocation of staff costs arising out the 
improving the service exercise. The total budget therefore becomes 
£23,683,485. 

5. In addition to the effects of inflation, the following adjustments were made to 
the 2004/5 Environment budget: approved by the Council 

   £000 

Addition for the increase in property 
related insurance costs 

 21 

Waste Management PFI Contract 
(including £300,000 to meet additional 
costs following renegotiation) 

 

 830 

One-off use of reserves for highways 
maintenance in 2003/04 not available 
for 2004/5 

 -100 

TOTAL ADDITION TO THE BUDGET  751 

 

  

RECOMMENDATION 

 THAT the report confirming the Environment 2004/05 budget be 
noted. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None identified. 

40



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 18 JUNE 2004 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Bob Barker, Performance Officer  on 01432 
260985 

 
BVRImprovmentPlanreport0.doc 

 BEST VALUE REVIEWS – IMPLEMENTATION OF 
IMPROVEMENT PLANS 

Report By: Performance Officer 
 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1 To report the remaining actions and the exceptions to the programmed progress in 
the improvement plans resulting from the reviews of Development Control, Public 
Conveniences Public Rights of Way and Highway Maintenance. 

Financial Implications 

2 There has been no variation to the financial implications identified in the individual 
Improvement Plans.  

Background 

3 In response to comments from Members and Officers, the reporting arrangements 
have been developed by consolidating the reports and only reporting on exceptions 
to the programmed actions. That is, where actions have been completed earlier than 
programmed or where the timetable has not been met. 

4 Appendix 1 of this report covers the following improvement plans: 

• Development Control 

• Public Conveniences 

• Public Rights of Way 

• Highway Maintenance 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT members note and comment on, where appropriate, the 
implementation of the improvement plans. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None 

AGENDA ITEM 10

41



42



A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

P
ag

e 
1 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
C

O
N

TR
O

L 
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

e 
A

ct
io

n 
M

ile
st

on
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r(
s)

  
B

y 
W

he
n 

Pr
og

re
ss

 
In

di
ca

to
r f

or
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

H
ig

h 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 s

pe
ed

 
of

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
ve

ne
ss

 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 

P
ro

du
ce

 I
T 

st
ra

te
gy

 f
or

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t C

on
tro

l 

 

In
cl

ud
e 

us
e 

of
 

w
eb

 a
nd

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
w

eb
si

te
, M

V
M

, 
G

IS
, p

ot
en

tia
l o

f 
do

cu
m

en
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sy
st

em
 

E
xc

ha
ng

e 
of

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ith
 

in
te

rn
al

 
co

ns
ul

te
es

 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

er
vi

ce
 in

 
lia

is
on

 w
ith

 
IT

 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
2 

P
ro

je
ct

 p
la

n 
to

 u
pd

at
e 

M
V

M
 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

fu
nc

tio
na

lit
y 

cu
rr

en
tly

 b
ei

ng
 im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 

W
or

ki
ng

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 u

se
 o

f 
M

V
M

. G
IS

, a
nd

 im
pr

ov
e 

w
eb

 
ca

pa
bi

lit
ie

s 
un

de
rw

ay
 in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 IE
G

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
 R

ol
lo

ut
 o

f n
ew

 
ha

rd
w

ar
e,

 s
of

tw
ar

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
, t

og
et

he
r w

ith
 th

e 
in

pu
t o

f h
is

to
ric

al
 d

at
a 

is
 

un
de

r w
ay

. C
ou

nc
il 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
w

eb
si

te
 is

 n
ow

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 

w
ith

 O
D

P
M

 P
la

nn
in

g 
P

or
ta

l. 

B
V

10
9 

– 
D

et
er

m
in

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

w
ith

in
 8

/1
3 

w
ee

ks
 a

nd
 

ne
w

 B
es

t 
V

al
ue

 In
di

ca
to

r 
20

5 
 - 

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 

ch
ec

kl
is

t. 

H
ig

h 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 s

pe
ed

 
of

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
ve

ne
ss

 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

 D
es

ig
n 

G
ui

de
 

 
Le

ad
 

P
la

nn
er

 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 / 
C

on
su

lta
nt

 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
B

ei
ng

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 O
w

n 
W

ill
ia

m
s 

B
V

10
9 

– 
D

et
er

m
in

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

w
ith

in
 8

/1
3 

w
ee

ks
 

 
PU

B
LI

C
 C

O
N

VE
N

IE
N

C
ES

 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

e 
A

ct
io

n 
M

ile
st

on
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r(
s)

 
B

y 
W

he
n 

Pr
og

re
ss

 
In

di
ca

to
r f

or
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

H
ig

h 
P

rio
rit

y 
– 

20
03

/5
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 

R
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
t 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 

in
cl

ud
e 

su
rv

ey
 o

f e
ac

h 
P

C
 

si
te

, d
et

er
m

in
e 

le
ve

l o
f 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
an

d 
co

st
, 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

 lo
ca

l 
m

em
be

rs
, s

ub
m

it 
ca

pi
ta

l 
bi

d 
fo

r t
he

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

sp
re

ad
 o

ve
r 5

 y
ea

rs
 

W
es

tb
ur

y 
S

t, 
Le

o.
 c

om
pl

et
ed

. 
Fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

dy
 

be
in

g 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t o
n 

U
ni

on
 

S
tre

et
. 

H
O

S
 

P
ro

pe
rty

 

S
ta

rti
ng

 in
 2

00
3 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 in

 
20

07
 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
ne

w
 J

ar
vi

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

R
es

tru
ct

ur
e.

 
C

ap
ita

l b
id

 fo
r 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
to

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 
bu

dg
et

 ro
un

d 
fo

r 2
00

4/
05

. 
In

ve
st

ig
at

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 

m
at

ch
 fu

nd
in

g.
 

P
ub

lic
 

pe
rc

ep
tio

n 
in

di
ca

to
r 

43



A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

P
ag

e 
2 

 PU
B

LI
C

 R
IG

H
TS

 O
F 

W
A

Y 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

e 
A

ct
io

n 
C

om
m

en
t 

O
ffi

ce
r(

s)
 

B
y 

w
he

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

In
di

ca
to

r f
or

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 

H
ig

h     

Im
pr

ov
ed

 fo
cu

s 
of

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
W

rit
e 

po
lic

y 
an

d 
st

ra
te

gy
 

fo
r f

ut
ur

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 in

cl
ud

e:
 

• 
W

he
re

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

fo
cu

ss
ed

 

• 
H

ow
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 
D

is
cr

im
in

at
io

n 
A

ct
  

• 
B

us
in

es
s 

pl
an

 w
ith

 
ta

rg
et

s 

• 
A

n 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t p
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

st
ra

te
gy

 

• 
Th

e 
cr

ea
tio

n 
of

 a
n 

A
ss

et
 R

eg
is

te
r 

• 
H

ow
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
P

R
O

W

R
es

ou
rc

e 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 - 

Id
en

tif
y 

fu
nd

in
g 

to
 p

ay
 fo

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
nc

y 
w

or
k,

 D
D

A
 c

os
t 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

, 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

of
 

ne
tw

or
k,

 
cr

ea
tio

n 
of

 a
ss

et
 

re
gi

st
er

. 

 

S
O

/M
J 

/ 
an

d 
ot

he
rs

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
2 

  

In
iti

al
 r

es
ea

rc
h 

st
ar

te
d 

on
 

E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
S

tra
te

gy
. 

N
ow

 in
 d

ra
ft 

fo
rm

. 

S
tra

te
gy

 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

fo
r 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n.

 C
lo

si
ng

 d
at

e 
fo

r 
co

m
m

en
ts

 
11

 
Ju

ne
 

20
04

 

 

B
V

17
8 

E
as

e 
of

 
us

e 
of

 
R

ig
ht

s 
of

 W
ay

 

H
ig

h 
In

cr
ea

se
 

th
ro

ug
hp

ut
 

of
 

D
iv

er
si

on
 

O
rd

er
s 

R
es

ea
rc

h,
 

de
vi

se
 

an
d 

w
rit

e 
a 

fa
st

-tr
ac

k 
m

et
ho

d 
fo

r 
de

te
rm

in
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 f

or
 D

iv
er

si
on

 
O

rd
er

s 

S
ta

ff 
tim

e 
– 

po
ss

ib
le

 
of

fs
et

 
th

ro
ug

h 
in

co
m

e 
ge

ne
ra

tio
n.

 N
ow

 
pa

rt 
of

 s
tra

te
gy

. 

R
H

/M
M

 
1/

7/
02

 
N

ew
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
to

 b
e 

pu
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 J
ul

y 
20

04
. 

 

M
ed

iu
m

 
 

A
ss

es
s 

ex
te

nd
in

g 
P

ar
is

h 
P

at
h 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 
re

vi
ew

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
an

nu
al

ly
 –

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
ve

st
ig

at
in

g 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 p

ar
t f

un
di

ng
 fr

om
 

P
ar

is
he

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
pr

ec
ep

t 

 
R

H
 / 

TM
W

 / 
H

er
ef

o-
rd

sh
ire

 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
of

 L
oc

al
 

C
ou

nc
ils

 

31
/3

/0
2 

P
ar

is
h 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
S

ch
em

es
 r

ev
is

ed
. 

S
tri

ct
er

 
fin

an
ci

al
 

co
nt

ro
ls

 
pu

t 
in

 
pl

ac
e 

an
d 

cl
os

er
 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 o
ut

pu
ts

. 

 

44



A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

P
ag

e 
3 

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y 

M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E 

Pr
io

rit
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

A
re

a 
A

ct
io

n 
Ta

rg
et

s 
an

d 
O

ut
co

m
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r(
s)

  
St

ar
t 

D
at

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

ed
 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

da
te

 

Pr
og

re
ss

  
In

di
ca

to
r f

or
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

H
ig

h 
B

es
t P

ra
ct

ic
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 

D
ev

el
op

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 IT

 
sy

st
em

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
po

rti
ng

 
vi

a 
th

e 
"w

eb
". 

- i
n 

lia
is

on
 

w
ith

 IT
 s

ec
tio

n 
(c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
to

 e
-g

ov
er

nm
en

t).
 L

in
ks

 to
 

"In
fo

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

". 
 

[B
es

t V
al

ue
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n]

 

Ta
rg

et
 - 

al
l 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

s 
co

ve
re

d 
in

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 

e-
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
ta

rg
et

s.
 O

ut
co

m
e 

- I
m

pr
ov

ed
 

cu
st

om
er

 
re

sp
on

si
ve

ne
ss

.  
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 
re

sp
on

di
ng

 to
 

de
fe

ct
s 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 

hi
gh

er
 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
st

an
da

rd
s.

  

B
H

/IT
/F

M
/R

H
/D

JP
 

A
pr

-0
2

A
pr

il 
20

04
W

eb
 p

ag
es

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 s

tre
et

 
sc

en
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

op
er

at
io

na
l f

ro
m

 8
 J

un
e 

20
04

. 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
ub

lic
 

pe
rc

ep
tio

n 
P

I 

 

45



46



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 18 JUNE 2004 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Graham Dunhill, Director of Environment 
 on 01432 260041 

 
 

PIsreport0.doc  

 MONITORING OF 2003/2004 PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS – FULL YEAR APRIL 2003 TO MARCH 
2004 

Report By: Director of Environment 
 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To update Members on progress made by the Environment Directorate for the  full 
year April 2003 to March 2004 towards achieving all of the performance indicators / 
targets which appear in the Council’s Performance Plan. 

Financial Implications 

2. All expenditure in respect of performance indicators / targets is from approved 
budgets. 

Content 

3. The report of the targeted performance is attached at Appendix 1 for Members’ 
consideration.   

4. Also included, are the proposed targets for 2004-2007. Where it is noted that there is 
no requirement to provide targets then the indicator has been deleted or is under 
review by the ODPM. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the monitoring report in relation to the 2003/2004 local and 
national performance indicators be noted, subject to any 
comments which Members may wish to raise.  

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None 

AGENDA ITEM 11

47



48



P
Is

 2
00

3/
4 

A
ct

ua
ls

 a
nd

 3
 Y

ea
r T

ar
ge

ts
 

Pa
ge

 1
 

EN
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
T 

N
at

io
na

l: 
B

es
t V

al
ue

 

R
ef

 
Ta

rg
et

/In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

03
/4

 
A

ct
ua

l 
20

03
/4

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

04
/0

5 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

05
/6

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

06
/7

 

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
 

 
 

 
 

 
B

V
82

a 
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

to
ta

l t
on

na
ge

 o
f h

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 a

ris
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 
be

en
 re

cy
cl

ed
 

13
.6

2%
 

13
.4

5%
 

14
.0

%
 

14
.4

%
 

15
.2

%
 

B
V

82
b 

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
to

ta
l t

on
na

ge
 o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 a
ris

in
gs

 w
hi

ch
 h

as
 

be
en

 c
om

po
st

ed
 

5.
74

%
 

5.
95

%
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
be

in
g 

am
en

de
d 

 - 
Ta

rg
et

 6
.3

6%

6.
6%

 
7.

4%
 

B
V

82
c 

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
to

ta
l t

on
na

ge
 o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 a
ris

in
gs

 w
hi

ch
 h

as
 

be
en

 u
se

d 
to

 re
co

ve
r h

ea
t, 

po
w

er
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 e
ne

rg
y 

so
ur

ce
s 

0%
 

0%
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
be

in
g 

am
en

de
d 

 - 
Ta

rg
et

 0
%

 

0%
 

0%
 

B
V

82
d 

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
to

ta
l t

on
na

ge
 o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 a
ris

in
gs

 w
hi

ch
 h

as
 

be
en

 la
nd

fil
le

d 
80

.6
4%

 
80

.6
%

 
79

.6
4%

 
79

%
 

77
.4

%
 

B
V

84
  

K
g 

of
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 p

er
 h

ea
d 

pe
r a

nn
um

 
52

4.
6k

g 
49

6.
56

kg
 

51
5k

g 
 

53
0k

g 
54

6k
g 

 
C

os
t/e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 
 

 
 

 
 

B
V

86
 

C
os

t o
f w

as
te

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

pe
r h

ou
se

ho
ld

 
£3

6.
22

 
£3

8.
99

 
£4

0.
93

 
£4

2.
99

 
£4

5.
14

 
B

V
87

 
C

os
t o

f w
as

te
 d

is
po

sa
l p

er
 to

nn
e 

fo
r m

un
ic

ip
al

 w
as

te
 

£6
8.

38
 

£5
9.

23
 

£6
2.

19
 

£6
5.

30
 

£6
8.

57
 

B
V

89
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
sa

tis
fie

d 
w

ith
 c

le
an

lin
es

s 
st

an
da

rd
s 

65
%

 
62

%
 

N
ot

 C
ol

le
ct

ed
N

ot
 C

ol
le

ct
ed

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 y

et
 

re
qu

ire
d 

B
V

90
a 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
sa

tis
fie

d 
w

ith
 w

as
te

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

 
82

%
 

89
%

 
N

ot
 C

ol
le

ct
ed

N
ot

 C
ol

le
ct

ed
Ta

rg
et

 n
ot

 y
et

 
re

qu
ire

d 
B

V
90

b 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

sa
tis

fie
d 

w
ith

 re
cy

cl
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

66
%

 
67

%
 

N
ot

 C
ol

le
ct

ed
N

ot
 C

ol
le

ct
ed

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 y

et
 

re
qu

ire
d 

B
V

90
c 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
sa

tis
fie

d 
w

ith
 c

iv
ic

 a
m

en
ity

 s
ite

s 
64

%
 

82
%

 
N

ot
 C

ol
le

ct
ed

N
ot

 C
ol

le
ct

ed
Ta

rg
et

 n
ot

 y
et

 
re

qu
ire

d 
 

Fa
ir 

ac
ce

ss
 

 
 

 
 

 
B

V
91

  
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

re
si

de
nt

 in
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
’s

 a
re

a 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

a 
se

rv
ed

 b
y 

a 
ke

rb
si

de
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
of

 re
cy

cl
ab

le
s 

 -
Ta

rg
et

  d
ep

en
da

nt
 u

po
n 

th
e 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 M

R
C

 

56
%

 
56

%
 

59
%

 
59

%
 

59
%

 

B
V

19
9 

Lo
ca

l S
tre

et
 a

nd
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

t C
le

an
lin

es
s 

– 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f s

ite
s 

be
lo

w
 

G
ra

de
 B

 –
 i.

e.
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

 fr
ee

 o
f l

itt
er

 a
nd

 re
fu

se
 e

xc
ep

t f
or

 s
om

e 
sm

al
l i

te
m

s.
 

36
%

 
34

%
 

33
%

 
32

%
 

31
%

 

49



P
Is

 2
00

3/
4 

A
ct

ua
ls

 a
nd

 3
 Y

ea
r T

ar
ge

ts
 

Pa
ge

 2
 

 Lo
ca

l: 
 

R
ef

 
Ta

rg
et

/In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

03
/4

 
A

ct
ua

l 
20

03
/4

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

04
/0

5 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

05
/0

6 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

06
/7

 

 
S

tre
et

 c
le

an
in

g 
qu

ar
te

rly
 c

le
an

lin
es

s 
in

de
x 

– 
ba

se
d 

on
 e

xi
st

in
g 

co
nt

ra
ct

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

80
.3

3 
R

ep
la

ce
d 

by
 B

V
19

9 
In

di
ca

to
r d

el
et

ed
 

 
N

um
be

r o
f m

is
se

d 
bi

ns
 –

 a
ll 

ro
un

ds
 (n

ot
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

tra
de

) b
as

ed
 o

n 
2 

pe
r 

ro
un

d 
pe

r w
ee

k 
46

 
32

.1
 

44
 

42
 

40
 

 
%

 o
f d

ay
s 

pu
bl

ic
 c

on
ve

ni
en

ce
s 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
cl

os
ed

 
0.

87
%

 
1.

15
%

 
1.

15
%

 
1.

10
%

 
1.

0%
 

 H
IG

H
W

A
YS

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

N
SP

O
R

TA
TI

O
N

 
N

at
io

na
l: 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 

R
ef

 
Ta

rg
et

/In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

03
/4

 
A

ct
ua

l 
20

03
/4

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

04
/0

5 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

05
/0

6 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

06
/7

 

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y 
ou

tc
om

e 
 

 
 

 
 

B
V

96
  

C
on

di
tio

n 
of

 p
rin

ci
pa

l r
oa

ds
 - 

%
 w

or
se

 th
an

 c
on

di
tio

n 
th

re
sh

ol
d 

3%
 

3.
85

%
 

In
di

ca
to

r b
ei

ng
 a

m
en

de
d 

– 
ta

rg
et

s 
no

t 
re

qu
ire

d 
ye

t 
B

V
97

a 
 C

on
di

tio
n 

of
 n

on
-p

rin
ci

pa
l r

oa
ds

 - 
%

 w
or

se
 th

an
 c

on
di

tio
n 

th
re

sh
ol

d 
32

%
 

58
.0

1%
 

51
%

 
44

%
 

37
%

 
B

V
97

b 
 C

on
di

tio
n 

of
 n

on
-p

rin
ci

pa
l r

oa
ds

 - 
%

 w
or

se
 th

an
 c

on
di

tio
n 

th
re

sh
ol

d 
28

%
 

38
.7

4%
 

44
%

 
39

%
 

35
%

 
 

R
oa

d 
sa

fe
ty

 
 

 
 

 
 

B
V

99
a(

i) 
 N

um
be

r o
f p

ed
es

tri
an

s 
ki

lle
d 

or
 s

us
ta

in
in

g 
se

rio
us

 in
ju

ry
 in

 ro
ad

 
ac

ci
de

nt
s 

pe
r 1

00
,0

00
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
15

.6
6 

8.
16

 
N

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 
N

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 
N

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 

B
V

99
a(

ii)
 N

um
be

r o
f p

ed
es

tri
an

s 
su

st
ai

ni
ng

 s
lig

ht
 in

ju
ry

 in
 ro

ad
 a

cc
id

en
ts

 p
er

 
10

0,
00

0 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

36
.1

6 
29

.1
4 

N
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

N
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

N
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

B
V

99
b(

i) 
 N

um
be

r o
f p

ed
al

 c
yc

lis
ts

 k
ill

ed
 o

r s
us

ta
in

in
g 

se
rio

us
 in

ju
ry

 in
 ro

ad
 

ac
ci

de
nt

s 
pe

r 1
00

,0
00

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

9.
92

 
6.

99
 

N
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

N
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

N
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

B
V

99
b(

ii)
 N

um
be

r o
f p

ed
al

 c
yc

lis
ts

 s
us

ta
in

in
g 

sl
ig

ht
 in

ju
ry

 in
 ro

ad
 a

cc
id

en
ts

 p
er

 
10

0,
00

0 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

28
.4

6 
22

.7
3 

N
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

N
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

N
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

B
V

99
c(

i) 
 N

um
be

r o
f t

w
o 

w
he

el
ed

 m
ot

or
 v

eh
ic

le
 u

se
rs

 k
ill

ed
 o

r s
us

ta
in

in
g 

se
rio

us
 

in
ju

ry
 in

 ro
ad

 a
cc

id
en

ts
 p

er
 1

00
,0

00
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
19

.8
3 

15
.1

5 
N

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 
N

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 
N

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 

50



P
Is

 2
00

3/
4 

A
ct

ua
ls

 a
nd

 3
 Y

ea
r T

ar
ge

ts
 

Pa
ge

 3
 

R
ef

 
Ta

rg
et

/In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

03
/4

 
A

ct
ua

l 
20

03
/4

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

04
/0

5 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

05
/0

6 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

06
/7

 

B
V

99
c(

ii)
 N

um
be

r o
f t

w
o 

w
he

el
ed

 m
ot

or
 v

eh
ic

le
 u

se
rs

 s
us

ta
in

in
g 

sl
ig

ht
 in

ju
ry

 in
 

ro
ad

 a
cc

id
en

ts
 p

er
 1

00
,0

00
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
27

.8
6 

29
.7

2 
N

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 
N

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 
N

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 

B
V

99
d(

i) 
 N

um
be

r o
f c

ar
 u

se
rs

 k
ill

ed
 o

r s
us

ta
in

in
g 

se
rio

us
 in

ju
ry

 in
 ro

ad
 a

cc
id

en
ts

 
pe

r 1
00

,0
00

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

75
.1

6 
50

.1
2 

N
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

N
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

N
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

B
V

99
d(

ii)
 N

um
be

r o
f c

ar
 u

se
rs

 s
us

ta
in

in
g 

sl
ig

ht
 in

ju
ry

 in
 ro

ad
 a

cc
id

en
ts

 p
er

 
10

0,
00

0 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

29
1.

08
 

35
2.

58
 

N
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

N
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

N
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

B
V

99
e(

i) 
 N

um
be

r o
f o

th
er

 v
eh

ic
le

 u
se

rs
 k

ill
ed

 o
r s

us
ta

in
in

g 
se

rio
us

 in
ju

ry
 in

 ro
ad

 
ac

ci
de

nt
s 

pe
r 1

00
,0

00
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
9.

39
 

6.
99

 
N

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 
N

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 
N

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 

B
V

99
e(

ii)
 N

um
be

r o
f o

th
er

 v
eh

ic
le

 u
se

rs
 s

us
ta

in
in

g 
sl

ig
ht

 in
ju

ry
 in

 ro
ad

 a
cc

id
en

ts
 

pe
r 1

00
,0

00
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
42

.6
8 

59
.4

4 
N

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 
N

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 
N

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 

B
V

10
0 

Lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
ro

ad
 w

or
ks

 p
er

 k
ilo

m
et

re
 o

f t
ra

ffi
c 

se
ns

iti
ve

 ro
ad

 
0.

1 
0.

41
25

 
0.

2 
0.

2 
0.

2 

B
V

10
2 

Lo
ca

l b
us

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
(p

as
se

ng
er

 jo
ur

ne
ys

 p
er

 y
ea

r)
 

3,
81

0,
00

0
3,

94
6,

 7
46

3,
82

0,
50

0 
3,

88
9,

00
0 

3,
92

5,
00

0 
B

V
10

3 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 u
se

rs
 s

at
is

fie
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 p
ub

lic
 tr

an
sp

or
t 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

50
%

 
48

%
 

N
ot

 C
ol

le
ct

ed
N

ot
 C

ol
le

ct
ed

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 

ye
t r

eq
ui

re
d 

B
V

10
4 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 u

se
rs

 s
at

is
fie

d 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l b

us
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

50
%

 
51

%
 

N
ot

 C
ol

le
ct

ed
N

ot
 C

ol
le

ct
ed

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 

ye
t r

eq
ui

re
d 

 
Fa

ir 
A

cc
es

s 
 

 
 

 
 

B
V

16
5 

 T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

ed
es

tri
an

 c
ro

ss
in

gs
 w

ith
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

fo
r d

is
ab

le
d 

pe
op

le
. 

93
%

 
93

%
 

96
%

 
99

%
 

99
%

 

B
V

17
8 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l l
en

gt
h 

of
 fo

ot
pa

th
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r r
ig

ht
s 

of
 w

ay
 

th
at

 w
er

e 
ea

sy
 to

 u
se

 b
y 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 p

ub
lic

 –
C

S
S

/C
A

 M
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 
us

ed
 to

 m
ea

su
re

 

46
%

 
43

.5
%

 
46

%
 

47
%

 
48

%
 

B
V

18
0b

  A
ve

ra
ge

 la
m

p 
ci

rc
ui

t w
at

ta
ge

 c
om

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 a

ve
ra

ge
 

co
ns

um
pt

io
n/

w
at

ta
ge

 b
y 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
U

K
. 

Ta
rg

et
 s

et
 

w
he

n 
N

at
io

na
l 

A
ve

ra
ge

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

A
s 

gu
id

an
ce

 is
 n

ot
 y

et
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

ou
t-t

ur
ns

 a
nd

 ta
rg

et
s 

ar
e 

no
t r

eq
ui

re
d 

B
V

18
6a

  P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

rin
ci

pa
l r

oa
d 

ne
tw

or
k 

no
t n

ee
di

ng
 m

aj
or

 re
pa

ir 
by

 c
os

t 
pe

r k
m

 
15

0 
16

6 
16

8 
16

8 
16

8 

B
V

18
6b

  P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 n

on
-p

rin
ci

pa
l r

oa
d 

ne
tw

or
k 

no
t n

ee
di

ng
 m

aj
or

 re
pa

ir 
by

 
40

0 
23

5 
23

7 
26

4 
28

8 

51



P
Is

 2
00

3/
4 

A
ct

ua
ls

 a
nd

 3
 Y

ea
r T

ar
ge

ts
 

Pa
ge

 4
 

R
ef

 
Ta

rg
et

/In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

03
/4

 
A

ct
ua

l 
20

03
/4

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

04
/0

5 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

05
/0

6 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

06
/7

 

co
st

 p
er

 k
m

 
B

V
18

7 
C

on
di

tio
n 

of
 fo

ot
w

ay
s 

– 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 g
re

at
er

 th
an

 th
re

sh
ol

d 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

de
fic

ie
nc

y.
 

70
%

 
35

.8
3%

 
34

.5
%

 
34

%
 

33
%

 

 Lo
ca

l: 
 

R
ef

 
Ta

rg
et

/In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

03
/4

 
A

ct
ua

l 
20

03
/4

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

04
/0

5 
Ta

rg
et

  
20

05
/6

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

06
/7

 

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 s
ub

si
di

se
d 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
pe

ra
te

d 
w

ith
 d

is
ab

le
d 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

45
%

 
66

%
 

75
%

 
85

%
 

85
%

 

 
K

ilo
m

et
re

s 
of

 ru
ra

l f
oo

tw
ay

s 
co

ns
tru

ct
ed

 
1.

5k
m

 
0.

39
km

 
1.

25
 k

m
 

1.
0 

km
 

1.
0 

km
 

 
N

um
be

r o
f a

cc
id

en
t c

lu
st

er
 s

ite
s 

tre
at

ed
 

90
 

59
 

In
di

ca
to

r D
el

et
ed

 
 

K
ilo

m
et

re
s 

of
 n

ew
 c

yc
le

 ro
ut

e 
cr

ea
te

d 
1k

m
 

2.
0k

m
 

In
di

ca
to

r D
el

et
ed

 
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 s

ig
na

lle
d 

ju
nc

tio
ns

 w
ith

 a
dv

an
ce

d 
cy

cl
e 

st
op

lin
es

 
52

%
 

40
%

 
In

di
ca

to
r D

el
et

ed
 

 
N

um
be

r o
f P

en
al

ty
 C

ha
rg

e 
N

ot
ic

es
 is

su
ed

 –
 a

m
en

de
d 

in
di

ca
to

r 
21

,0
00

 
23

,0
46

 
23

,0
00

 
23

,0
00

 
23

,0
00

 
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

(N
um

be
r)

 o
f P

en
al

ty
 C

ha
rg

e 
no

tic
e 

ap
pe

al
s 

ca
se

s 
“lo

st
” a

t 
ap

pe
al

 a
s 

a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f t

ho
se

 ta
ke

n 
to

 a
dj

ud
ic

at
io

n 
<5

0%
 

30
%

 (1
7 

ou
t o

f 5
6)

 
<5

0%
 

<5
0%

 
<5

0%
 

 
N

et
w

or
k 

Se
rv

ic
ea

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f m

aj
or

 ro
ad

w
or

k 
sc

he
m

es
 th

at
 o

ve
r-

ru
n 

th
e 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
da

te
. 

0%
 

0%
 

0%
 

0%
 

0%
 

 
N

et
w

or
k 

Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Th

e 
an

nu
al

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 f
or

 r
ea

ct
iv

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 t

o 
ru

nn
in

g 
su

rfa
ce

s 
co

m
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 
th

e 
an

nu
al

 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 
fo

r 
pr

og
ra

m
m

ed
 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 

17
.5

%
 

17
%

 
17

%
 

17
%

 
17

%
 

 
St

re
et

 L
ig

ht
in

g 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
le

ng
th

 o
f t

im
e 

in
 re

pa
iri

ng
 s

tre
et

 li
gh

t f
au

lts
 c

om
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 
th

e 
au

th
or

iti
es

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 
4.

5 
da

ys
 

3.
9 

4.
0 

4.
0 

4.
0 

 
B

rid
ge

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

um
be

r o
f b

rid
ge

s 
in

sp
ec

te
d 

to
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

 s
tru

ct
ur

al
 in

te
gr

ity
 (t

w
o 

ye
ar

 
ro

ta
). 

46
3 

46
3 

39
5 

39
5 

39
5 

 

52



P
Is

 2
00

3/
4 

A
ct

ua
ls

 a
nd

 3
 Y

ea
r T

ar
ge

ts
 

Pa
ge

 5
 

 PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 
N

at
io

na
l: 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 

R
ef

 
Ta

rg
et

/In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

03
/4

 
A

ct
ua

l 
20

03
/4

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

04
/0

5 
Ta

rg
et

  
20

05
/6

 
Ta

rg
et

  
20

06
/7

 

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
 

 
 

 
 

B
V

10
6 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 b
ui

lt 
on

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
la

nd
 

60
%

 
69

%
 

60
%

 
60

%
 

60
%

 
 

C
os

t/e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 

 
 

 
 

 
B

V
10

7 
P

la
nn

in
g 

co
st

 p
er

 h
ea

d 
of

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

£1
9.

69
 

 
In

di
ca

to
r d

el
et

ed
 

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y 
ou

tc
om

e 
 

 
 

 
 

B
V

10
9a

  D
et

er
m

in
e 

m
aj

or
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 a

nd
 in

du
st

ria
l a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 w

ith
in

 1
3 

w
ee

ks
60

%
 

53
%

 
60

%
  

62
%

 
64

%
 

B
V

10
9b

  D
et

er
m

in
e 

m
in

or
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 a

nd
 in

du
st

ria
l a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 w

ith
in

 8
 w

ee
ks

 
65

%
 

67
%

 
65

%
  

67
%

 
69

%
 

B
V

10
9c

  D
et

er
m

in
e 

ot
he

r a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 w
ith

in
 8

 w
ee

ks
  

80
%

 
76

%
 

80
%

 
82

%
 

84
%

 
B

V
11

1 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 a
pp

lic
an

ts
 s

at
is

fie
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

80
%

 
76

%
 

N
ot

 C
ol

le
ct

ed
N

ot
 C

ol
le

ct
ed

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 y

et
 

re
qu

ire
d 

 
Q

ua
lit

y 
 

 
 

 
 

B
V

18
8 

N
um

be
r o

f d
ec

is
io

ns
 d

el
eg

at
ed

 to
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f a
ll 

de
ci

si
on

s 
90

%
 

88
%

 
In

di
ca

to
r d

el
et

ed
 

B
V

20
0a

 P
la

n 
M

ak
in

g 
– 

H
av

e 
a 

U
ni

ta
ry

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
N

o 
N

o 
 

B
V

20
0b

 P
la

n 
M

ak
in

g 
– 

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 fo

r p
la

n 
Y

es
 

Y
es

 
In

di
ca

to
r m

ay
 c

ha
ng

e 
– 

ta
rg

et
s 

no
t r

eq
ui

re
d 

ye
t 

 Lo
ca

l: 
 

R
ef

 
Ta

rg
et

/In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

03
/4

 
A

ct
ua

l 
20

03
/4

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

04
/0

5 
Ta

rg
et

  
20

05
/6

 
Ta

rg
et

  
20

06
/7

 

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
er

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 8
 

w
ee

ks
 

87
%

 
85

%
 

In
di

ca
to

r d
el

et
ed

 

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

sa
tis

fie
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

co
nt

ro
l s

er
vi

ce
 

98
%

 
96

%
 

In
di

ca
to

r d
el

et
ed

 
 

P
ub

lis
h 

re
vi

se
d 

de
po

si
t U

ni
ta

ry
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

P
ub

lis
h 

re
vi

se
d 

de
po

si
t 

dr
af

t U
D

P

P
ub

lis
he

d 
M

ay
 2

00
4 

In
di

ca
to

r d
el

et
ed

 

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 in

va
lid

 o
n 

re
ce

ip
t  

(9
19

 o
ut

 o
f 3

68
6)

 
<2

5%
 

24
.9

%
 

<2
5%

 
<2

5%
 

<2
5%

 

53



P
Is

 2
00

3/
4 

A
ct

ua
ls

 a
nd

 3
 Y

ea
r T

ar
ge

ts
 

Pa
ge

 6
 

R
ef

 
Ta

rg
et

/In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

03
/4

 
A

ct
ua

l 
20

03
/4

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

04
/0

5 
Ta

rg
et

  
20

05
/6

 
Ta

rg
et

  
20

06
/7

 

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 a

pp
ea

ls
 w

he
re

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
de

ci
si

on
 w

as
 o

ve
rtu

rn
ed

 
<4

0%
 

29
%

 
<4

0%
 

<4
0%

 
<4

0%
 

 EN
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
TA

L 
H

EA
LT

H
 A

N
D

 T
R

A
D

IN
G

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
S 

N
at

io
na

l: 
B

es
t V

al
ue

 

R
ef

 
Ta

rg
et

/In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

03
/4

 
A

ct
ua

l 
20

03
/4

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

04
/0

5 
Ta

rg
et

  
20

05
/6

 
Ta

rg
et

  
20

06
/7

 
B

V
16

6a
 

S
co

re
 a

ga
in

st
 a

 c
he

ck
lis

t o
f e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t b

es
t p

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

90
%

 - 
ta

rg
et

 
am

en
de

d 
to

 5
6%

  

52
.1

%
 - 

 
fig

ur
e 

lo
w

er
 

be
ca

us
e 

au
di

to
r 

ad
vi

se
d 

ho
us

in
g 

to
 

be
 in

cl
ud

ed

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 y

et
 

re
qu

ire
d 

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 y

et
 

re
qu

ire
d 

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 y

et
 

re
qu

ire
d 

B
V

16
6b

 
S

co
re

 a
ga

in
st

 a
 c

he
ck

lis
t o

f e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t b
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r t
ra

di
ng

 
st

an
da

rd
s 

75
%

 - 
ta

rg
et

 
am

en
de

d 
to

 7
2%

 

68
.3

%
 -

fig
ur

e 
lo

w
er

 
be

ca
us

e 
au

di
to

r 
ad

vi
se

d 
ta

xi
 

lic
en

si
ng

 
ha

s 
to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 y

et
 

re
qu

ire
d 

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 y

et
 

re
qu

ire
d 

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 y

et
 

re
qu

ire
d 

 Lo
ca

l: 
 

R
ef

 
Ta

rg
et

/In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

03
/4

 
A

ct
ua

l 
20

03
/4

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

04
/0

5 
Ta

rg
et

  
20

05
/6

 
Ta

rg
et

  
20

06
/7

 
 

C
us

to
m

er
 S

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

le
ve

ls
 –

 o
ve

ra
ll 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 s
er

vi
ce

 
78

%
 

78
%

 
80

%
 

 
 

 

54



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                                       18 JUNE 2004                        
  
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Bill Bloxsome, Chief Conservation Officer  
on 01432 261783 

 
 

PlanAmbitionsProgresstoDateReportJune040.doc  

 HEREFORDSHIRE PLAN AMBITIONS – 
CONTRIBUTION MADE BY THE ENVIRONMENT 
DIRECTORATE 

Report By: Director of Environment 
 

Wards Affected   

County-wide  

Purpose    

1. To advise upon the Directorate’s contribution to the ambitions contained within the 
Herefordshire Plan, in particular those relating to “protecting and improving 
Herefordshire’s distinctive environment” and “developing an integrated transport 
system for Herefordshire”. 

Financial Implications 

2. There are no direct implications as a consequence of this report.  However, both 
direct and indirect financial contributions to activities and measures are made 
through existing budgets. 

Background 

3. The Herefordshire Plan is the Community Strategy for the County.  Such plans are 
required under the Local Government Act 2000. It also acts as a Local Agenda 21 
Plan, which Government requires Councils to produce.  In September 2001 the 
Strategic Monitoring Committee agreed that: 

• It should receive a report on an annual basis bringing together key activities 
and themes in relation to the Plan that are being progressed or emerging; and  

• Individual Scrutiny Committees should receive six monthly reports setting out 
progress to date, work in hand and future timetables in relation to the work of 
the Ambition Groups undertaken by the different parts of Herefordshire 
Council.                              

4. The Environment Scrutiny Committee received its last 6 monthly report on 21st 
November 2003. The Strategic Monitoring Committee received its latest annual 
report on 13th October 2003. 

5. It should be recalled that the mechanism for implementing the Community Plan is 
through 10 Ambition Groups established to deliver each of the ambitions contained 
within the Herefordshire Plan. This Scrutiny Committee has a role in scrutinising 
progress towards the following ambitions: 

• Protecting and improving Herefordshire’s distinctive environment 

• Developing an integrated transport system for Herefordshire 

AGENDA ITEM 12

55



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                                       18 JUNE 2004                        
  
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Bill Bloxsome, Chief Conservation Officer  
on 01432 261783 

 
 

PlanAmbitionsProgresstoDateReportJune040.doc  

6. These two ambitions fall to the Environment Ambition Group and the Transport 
Ambition Group respectively which in turn relate to the portfolios of the Cabinet 
Members for the Environment, Councillor Phil Edwards, and Highways and 
Transportation, Councillor Mike Wilson.  

7. In addition there are three Golden Threads, which run right through the Plan to 
connect with all ambitions. These are:  

• Geographic Communities 

• Communities of Interest 

• Tools and Mechanisms 

8. An updated Herefordshire Plan was published towards the end of last year.  This 
identifies achievements and “measures of progress” since the Plan was first 
produced. Ambition Groups are also asked to produce Action Plans to guide their 
work.  The Herefordshire Partnership prepares an annual report on progress outlined 
in “The State of Herefordshire Report”, which looks at a number of indicators to help 
the work of Ambition Groups.  A major review of the Herefordshire Plan is to be 
undertaken in 2004, leading to a new Plan in 2005.  

Achievements 

9. Achievements of the Environment Ambition Group included in the new revision of the 
Herefordshire Plan include:  

• Herefordshire Biodiversity Action Plan adopted – Council officers have been 
involved in the preparation of this Plan and are now working with Herefordshire 
Nature Trust upon its implementation.  Financial contributions continue to be 
made to this work and a review of the Biodiversity Action Plan is about to 
commence. 

• Development of a Climate Change Strategy for Herefordshire is underway – 
Councillors received a presentation on climate change in November 2003.  A 
public consultation will take place over the summer with the aim of completing the 
strategy by the end of December 2004.   

• Kerbside recycling available in most urban areas of the County.  Some 38,000 
properties, mainly within the urban areas are covered by the kerbside collection 
of recyclables (approximately 50% of the County’s properties). 

• Herefordshire Rivers LEADER+ programme developed – the Directorate has 
sought to utilise this scheme to assist with a range of environmental projects, also 
attracting other external funding. The Archaeology section within the Council 
recently published the outcome of a pilot study in the Arrow Valley entitled Arrow 
Valley, Herefordshire – Archaeology, Landscape Change and Conservation. A 
further project has commenced within the Frome Valley.  

 

10. Achievements by the Transport Wider Reference Group (Transport Ambition Group) 
are listed as: 

56



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                                       18 JUNE 2004                        
  
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Bill Bloxsome, Chief Conservation Officer  
on 01432 261783 

 
 

PlanAmbitionsProgresstoDateReportJune040.doc  

• New Safer Routes to Schools introduced – the number of new “Safer Routes to 
Schools” projects introduced rose from 4 in 99/00 to 8 in 02/03.  The 
Transportation Unit within the Division is currently helping to develop a 
Government’s School Travel Initiative in partnership with the Education 
Directorate and local schools in order to increase the number of schools with 
Travel Plans.                                          . 

• New rural bus routes and more frequent services introduced – this has been 
possible through the availability of new grant schemes, in particular, through the 
Department of Transport’s Rural Bus Grant. 

• Hereford City Transport study completed – Over the past year the group has 
been involved in developing the long-term strategy for tackling Hereford’s 
transport problems through a comprehensive multi-modal study, Hereford 
Transport Review.  

• Herefordshire public transport website launched – this was launched on February 
2003. 

11. The Environment Directorate has contributed to the work of a number of other 
Ambition Groups. In particular in relation to achievements through the Golden Thread 
of Geographic Communities, the Directorate has contributed to work being advanced 
through the Community Development and Local Services Ambition Group of 
preparing parish plans. Five Parish plans have now been completed and a further 32 
parishes are undertaking plans. A representative of Planning Services sits on the 
Parish Plan Steering group and 17 officers from the Environment directorate are 
nominated ‘key contacts’ for consultation purposes and to provide service 
information. Planning Services and the Planning Committee are adopting the 
planning elements of completed parish plans as interim Supplementary Planning 
Guidance and this has been done in 4 instances so far. 

Updates 

Environment Ambition Group 

12. There are four ‘measures of progress’ which are referred to in the present Plan under 
this Ambition: 

a) Percentage of New Homes built on brownfield sites – this continues to rise 
(62% in 02/03, 69% in 03/04).  The Environment Directorate’s influence on 
this measure is through the Planning System with the UDP setting the policy 
basis for such development and Development Control Officers and the 
Planning Committee implementing this through decisions on planning 
applications. 

b) Percentage of household waste recycled (including composting) – again 
progress has been made with the percentage in 99/00 being 11.4% and in 
02/03 being 15.4%.  Again the Environment Directorate is directly involved 
with this measure. Indication is that an even greater improvement has been 
made to 19.4% in 03/04 due largely to the start of kerbside collection of 
recyclables in urban areas and the completion of refurbishment of household 
waste sites. 

57



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                                       18 JUNE 2004                        
  
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Bill Bloxsome, Chief Conservation Officer  
on 01432 261783 

 
 

PlanAmbitionsProgresstoDateReportJune040.doc  

c)  Percentage of assessed areas within Sites of Special Scientific Interest 
(SSSIs) in ‘favourable’ or ‘recovering’ condition – the percentage has fallen 
from 39.7% (2001) to 32.6% (2003).  The Council can only influence a small 
fraction of such areas. It has a duty under the Countryside and Rights of Way 
Act 2000 to seek enhancements to SSSIs when undertaking its duties.  This 
can be through the Planning system, works to council land that may be 
SSSIs, or other works the Council undertakes or that might otherwise affect 
such areas.   

d) Area of land covered by Countryside Stewardship Studies – the number 
within the County continues to increase, from 1002 in1999 to 1672 in 2002.  
The Council’s Property Service seeks to assist those upon its small holdings 
in applying for Stewardship wherever it is able.  In addition, advice upon a 
range of factors is provided to assist in the preparation of bids and officers 
have been discussing the sharing of database information with DEFRA.  Two 
recent initiatives by the Directorate, utilising external funding, provide advice 
and guidance to the farming community upon conservation measures that 
might promote elements of the historic environment in stewardship bids.   The 
first is the appointment of a Countryside Advisor (Archaeology) with funding 
from English Heritage.  The second is a programme combining archaeology 
and landscape change, funded in combination by English Heritage and 
LEADER+.  The pilot project for this was in the Arrow Valley and is now 
complete.  A second project has now started within the Frome Valley.  It is 
hoped to roll this out into the Lugg and Wye Valleys subsequently. 

13. Additional contributions made by the Council towards this Ambition include: 

• The major party in the financing of the Environmental Co-ordinator post. Funding is 
also received from a number of other agencies. 

• Taking a lead role in a number of projects listed in the Ambition Groups Action Plan 

Transport Wider Reference Group 

14. The ‘measures of progress’ highlighted in the current version of the Herefordshire 
Plan under this ambition are: 

a) Number of people killed or seriously injured on Herefordshire’s roads – this 
has continued to decline from 179 (1999) to 150 (2002).  The Engineering 
and Transportation Division monitors accident statistics and identifies cluster 
sites bringing forward engineering and/or behavioural solutions to address 
problems. 

b) Number of passenger journeys per year on public buses – this saw a drop of 
2.4% between 01/02 and 02/03.  However, an increase is reported between 
02/03 and 03/04 (see below).  The Council’s Bus Strategy is to maintain the 
supported network of bus routes. 

c) Percentage of non-principal roads in poor condition - the Council has set a 
target for improvement of these roads by 2005 as part of the Road Safety 
target of the Local Public Service Agreement (LPSA).  The Highway 
Maintenance Plan for 2004/05 has been prepared on the basis of this target, 
with the aim of achieving a 3% improvement in the condition of non-principal 
roads between 2002 and 2005. The Government has recently revised the 

58



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                                       18 JUNE 2004                        
  
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Bill Bloxsome, Chief Conservation Officer  
on 01432 261783 

 
 

PlanAmbitionsProgresstoDateReportJune040.doc  

specification for measuring road condition, effectively preventing direct 
comparison between current and historic condition indicator data.  For the 
purposes of the LPSA a special survey will be commissioned for 
Herefordshire in 2004/05 to measure condition based on the same survey 
methodology as that employed for the 2002 baseline. 

 
15. To a large extent the work of this Ambition Group is also monitored through the 

Herefordshire Local Transport Plan Annual Progress Report published annually in 
July. This Plan forms the current action plan for achieving this ambition. Additional 
achievements that were highlighted in that progress report for July 2003 include: 

• 4.8% increase in cycling at prime points on the cycle network and 6.3% in 
numbers of cycles parked in the centre of Hereford. 

• 3.4% increase in bus passengers on rural services (which are supported by the 
Council) and a 5.9% increase in patronage on low floor bus services; 

• 16% decrease in the numbers of people killed or seriously injured in road traffic 
accidents; and 

• traffic volumes in both Hereford and the rural area have been constrained to meet 
the target of 1% growth from 2001 to 2002. 

A new Annual report will be published in July this Year. 

16. Over the past year booth Ambition Groups have responded to the consultation on the 
Edgar Street Grid proposals. The Transport Wider Reference Group is currently 
considering a review of the Council’s Parking Strategy and will be involved in the 
development of the next Herefordshire Local Transport Plan due to be published in 
July 2005. 

17. Environmental and Transportation matters also have significant effects on the work of 
a number of other Ambition Groups. Reference has already been made to the links 
with the Community Development and Local Services Ambition Group. Examples, 
amongst others, of further such linkages include: 

• Housing Ambition Group – developing the Housing Design Guide; 

• Business, Economic and Tourism Ambition Group – advising on planning and 
development matters and a joint sub–group upon Sustainable Land Use, and 
consultation on car parking strategy; 

• Community Safety Partnership – including road safety education, accident reduction,   
speed management, clearance of abandoned vehicles 

Recommendation 

THAT the report be noted 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• Herefordshire Local Transport Plan 

• Herefordshire Plan Environmental Strategy 

59



60


